Niagara Region | Niagara Escarpment Crossing
Comprehensive Environmental Assessment - Terms of Reference
Record of Consultation

Appendix D: Indigenous Communities
Correspondence



From: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: May 12, 2023 8:21 AM

To: consultations@metisnation.org

Cc: Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; Ball-Condron, Rachael; Ogunniyi, Cassandra;
Gillian Thompson; Alejandra Boyer

Subject: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment Terms
of Reference — Invitation for Early Engagement

Attachments: ngaza.&nammenﬂnmngJEAlems_oLBﬂfemnceJmulananiaLEaM

Engagement-MNO.pdf
I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Tanisi,

The Regional Municipality of Niagara will be formally initiating the development of a
Terms of Reference (ToR) that will guide the future preparation of an Environmental
Assessment (EA) for a north-south transportation crossing of the Niagara Escarpment
suitable to accommodate commercial vehicles and other modes, between the Queen
Elizabeth Way (QEW) and potential Smithville Bypass of Regional Road 20 in the
vicinity of Grimsby, Beamsville and Smithville.

Please find attached, an introductory letter with information about the initiative and an
invitation to meet in advance of the formal Notice of Commencement being issued.

| look forward to your response. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me by replying to this email or by phone at 905-980-6000 ext. 3583.

Maarsii,

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. (he/him)
Manager, Transportation Planning
Transportation Services Division

Public Works, Niagara Region

1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, Thorold, ON
Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca
Phone: 905-980-6000 ext. 3583

Cell: 289-407-6862

WWW.niagararegion.ca

Niagara _/_/ Region

The Regional Municipality of Niagara Confidentiality Notice The information contained in this
communication including any attachments may be confidential, is intended only for the use of the
recipient(s) named above, and may be legally privileged. If the reader of this message is not the
intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, disclosure, or copying



of this communication, or any of its contents, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this
communication in error, please re-send this communication to the sender and permanently delete the
original and any copy of it from your computer system. Thank you.



From: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: May 12, 2023 8:32 AM

To: info@hdi.land; janicewilliams@hdi.land; toddwilliams@hdi.land; Todd
Williams

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

Attachments: Niagara Fscarpment Crossing IEA-Terms of Reference-Invitation for Farly |

Engagement-HCCC.pdf
I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Sge:no/She:koli/Shekon,

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

Nya:weh,

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

WWWw.niagararegion.ca

Niagara _/_f Region

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

Sent: May 12, 2023 8:15 AM

To: stacey.laforme@mncfn.ca; mark.laforme@mncfn.ca;
abby.laforme@mncfn.ca; Adam LaForme

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

Engagement-MCFN.pdf
I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Aanii Chief LaForme,

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

Miigwech,

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

Sent: May 12, 2023 8:27 AM

To: markhill@sixnations.ca; lonnybomberry@sixnations.ca;
LRCS@sixnations.ca; Tanya Hill-Montour

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

Engagement-SNGR.pdf
I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Sge:no/She:koli/Shekon Chief Hill,

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

Sent: June 8, 2023 4:02 PM

To: info@hdi.land

Cc: Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; Ball-Condron, Rachael; Ogunniyi, Cassandra;
Gillian Thompson; Alejandra Boyer

Subject: RE: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment

Terms of Reference — Invitation for Early Engagement
I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Sge:no/She:koli/Shekon,

As the Region approaches the formal Notice of Commencement (anticipated late June)
for the Niagara Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment Terms of
Reference, | would like to follow up on my previous correspondence of May 12, 2023
(below).

We hope to meet with Haudenosaunee Development Institute in the next few weeks as
an opportunity for introductions and to discuss how your community wishes to
participate in the project.

| look forward to your response. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to
contact me by replying to this email or by phone at 905-980-6000 ext. 3583.

Nyaweh

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

Niagara _[_/ Region

From: ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 8:32 AM

To: info@hdi.land; janicewilliams@hdi.land; toddwilliams@hdi.land; Todd Williams
<williams.todde@gmail.com>

Cc: Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>; Khalil, Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Ball-
Condron, Rachael <Rachael.Ball-Condron@niagararegion.ca>; Ogunniyi, Cassandra
<Cassandra.Ogunniyi@niagararegion.ca>; Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca>; Alejandra



Boyer <Alejandra.Boyer@cima.ca>
Subject: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment Terms of Reference —
Invitation for Early Engagement

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

Niagara //Reginn

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

To: mark.laforme@mncfn.ca; abby.laforme@mncfn.ca;
adam.laforme@mncfn.ca

Cc: Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; Ball-Condron, Rachael; Ogunniyi, Cassandra;
Gillian Thompson; Alejandra Boyer

Subject: RE: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment

Terms of Reference — Invitation for Early Engagement - Follow up
I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Aanii,

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

We hope to meet with Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation in the next few weeks as
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

Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 8:15 AM

To: stacey.laforme@mncfn.ca; mark.laforme@mncfn.ca; abby.laforme@mncfn.ca; Adam LaForme
<Adam.LaForme@mncfn.ca>

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

Niagara _Z_/ Region

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

Sent: June 8, 2023 4:03 PM

To: Consultation

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

We hope to meet with Métis Nation of Ontario in the next few weeks as an opportunity
for introductions and to discuss how your community wishes to participate in the
project.

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

Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 8:21 AM

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

To: Lonny Bomberry; LRCS@sixnations.ca; Tanya Hill-Montour

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

We hope to meet with Six Nations of the Grand Rive in the next few weeks as an
opportunity for introductions and to discuss how your community wishes to participate in
the project.

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

Sent: Friday, May 12, 2023 8:27 AM

To: markhill@sixnations.ca; lonnybomberry@sixnations.ca; LRCS@sixnations.ca; Tanya Hill-Montour
<tanyahill-montour@sixnations.ca>

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



From: Gillian Thompson

Sent: June 15, 2023 11:03 AM

To: dawnrussell@sixnations.ca; laurenjones@sixnations.ca;
wsma@sixnations.ca; Irluo2@sixnations.ca

Cc: Alejandra Boyer; Ball-Condron, Rachael; Fraser, Scott; ElImadhoon, Maged;
Khalil, Ayat

Subject: RE: Niagara Escarpment Crossing IEA Terms of Reference - Meeting with
Six Nations

Good morning Dawn, Lauren J, Lauren V and Daylon

I am Gillie Thompson, a Senior Environmental Planner from CIMA+, working with Niagara
Region on the Niagara Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment Terms of
Reference.

We are very much looking forward to our introductory discussion next week (Tuesday June 20).

In preparation for our meeting, we have put together some suggested discussion topics and
invite you to review and add to these, as you see fit. We can change the order of items if you
wish but we thought it may be helpful to review the project before discussing Six Nations’
interests and participation.

Welcome

Introductions

Project Overview and Process (including preliminary study area)
Six Nations of the Grand River Rights, Interests and Participation
Communications and Contacts

Next Steps

oukwnNneE

We plan to put together a very brief presentation for the project overview, which we will share
onscreen during the meeting.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out via email or call me at 519-635-
5733.

Thank you
Gillie

Gillie Thompson B.Sc., MCIP, RPP
Senior Environmental Planner
Transportation

T 289 288-0287 ext. :6832
C519-635-5733
400-3027 Harvester Road Burlington Ontario L7N 3G7



for people

From: Khalil, Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 1:52 PM

To: Khalil, Ayat; dawnrussell@sixnations.ca; laurenjones@sixnations.ca; wsma@sixnations.ca;
Irluo2@sixnations.ca; ElImadhoon, Maged; Fraser, Scott; Ball-Condron, Rachael; Gillian Thompson;
Alejandra Boyer

Subject: Niagara Escarpment Crossing IEA Terms of Reference - Meeting with Six Nations

When: June 20, 2023 10:00 AM-11:00 AM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).

Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting

I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Hi everyone,

Please find the virtual meeting invite below for the early engagement invitation on June
20, 2023 at 10:00 am.

We will provide an agenda closer to the meeting date. We look forward to the
discussion.

Thankyou,
Ayat

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting

Meeting ID: 236 862 053 592
Passcode: YérJR4
Download Teams | Join on the web

Or call in (audio only)
+1289-302-3216,661797082# Canada, Niagara Falls
Phone Conference ID: 661 797 082#



https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_MzM5ZGUyM2ItYmM2Yy00NDJiLWIyYWEtMDFkNGU1YzA3YWE5%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f8214d3d-965c-48cb-b18b-ed323372be42%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22f3a23d85-bde2-4371-a235-07d42e2977a0%22%7d
https://www.microsoft.com/en-us/microsoft-teams/download-app
https://www.microsoft.com/microsoft-teams/join-a-meeting

Find a local number | Reset PIN

Learn More | Meeting options

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
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Meeting Minutes

Meeting: Six Nations of the Grand River Pre-Consultation
Meeting
Project: Niagara Region Escarpment Crossing IEA ToR

Date and Time: Tuesday, June 20, 2023, 10:00 to 11:00 am

Location: Virtual Meeting (MS Teams)
Attendees:
Name Representing
Maged Elmadhoon Niagara Region
Ayat Khalil Niagara Region
Scott Fraser Niagara Region
Rachel Ball-Condron Niagara Region
Peter Graham Six Nations of the Grand River
Lauren Jones Six Nations of the Grand River
Lauren Vanderlingen Six Nations of the Grand River
Daylon Gee Six Nations of the Grand River
Gillian (Gillie) Thompson CIMA+
Alejandra (Ali) Boyer CIMA+
Discussion Topics Action By
1. Introductions and Meeting Purpose & Objectives

1.1 Niagara Region provided a welcome to Six Nations of the Grand River staff. All
parties introduced themselves and CIMA+ reviewed the suggested discussion
topics (below) and invited SNGR to add to the :

e Project Overview and Terms of Reference Process
e Preliminary Study Area
e Discussion of Six Nations of the Grand River Interests and Participation

e Next Steps

2. Project Overview and Terms of Reference Process

400-3027 Harvester Road, Burlington ON. L7N 3G7 T:289-288-0287 F: 289-288-0285
cima.ca



Discussion Topics

2.1

2.2

This project plans for a north-south transportation crossing of the Niagara
Escarpment that connects the QEW to Regional Road 20 at the future Smithville
Bypass.

This planned crossing is intended to shift travel and improve safety in the areas
of Grimsby, Beamsville and Smithville by redirecting commercial and other
vehicles away from downtown areas as they travel across the Region.

This future corridor is intended to be multi-modal (including opportunities for
pedestrians and cyclists, and accommodate other infrastructure and utilities.

Niagara Region has been considering an improved transportation linkage across
the Niagara Escarpment for 30+ years.

Given the natural and cultural heritage significance and sensitivity of the area,
and after consultation with Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks, the
Region will be moving forward with this project following the Individual
Environmental Assessment process.

The Individual Environmental Assessment is a 2-step formal approvals process:
Step 1 is to the develop a Terms of Reference that will guide Step 2, the
environmental assessment.

The current project is the development of the Terms of Reference, which is a
strategic work plan for the future EA.

The Terms of Reference will be the framework on which the work-plan is carried
out. It will identify the activities for the EA, which includes requirements of the
technical work to be done, it will identify potential alternatives to be considered,
the decision-making framework and consultation plan.

The Terms of Reference provides certainty for all parties about how the EA will
be conducted and through the Terms we will seek to balance a level of certainty
with flexibility to accommodate potential changes that may come to light as the
project progresses.

The Terms are composed of three elements — the ToR itself, EA commitments to
future work and the consultation record.

The Terms of Reference is subject to review by government agencies and the
public. Itis also subject to the written approval by the Minister of the
Environment, Conservation and Parks.

The development of the ToR consists of 5 Steps:
Preliminary Draft Outline

Draft ToR

Proposed ToR

Submission of Proposed ToR to MECP

ok w N Re

Review and Approval of the Proposed ToR by the Minister

Page 2 of 6
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Discussion Topics

2.3

2.4

The project is currently in the early engagement and start up step where
connections are being established with Indigenous Communities, the Towns of
Grimsby and Lincoln and Township of West Lincoln, and the Niagara Escarpment
Commission.

Through fall of 2023, Six Nations staff will have an opportunity to review the Draft
Terms of Reference to ensure that the document is reflective of your inputs.

Refinements made to the Draft ToR through that process become the “proposed
ToR” that is submitted to the MECP staff who will coordinate further review
among Indigenous Communities and agencies.

In Stage 5, the Proposed ToR will go to the Minister for review and approval.
Part of the approval criteria will be confirmation by Indigenous Communities
that the Terms reflect Indigenous voices and that appropriate commitments are
in place to ensure the future EA work.

Areas of importance within the ToR include:

e Undertaking Purpose

e Alternatives To & Alternative Methods

e Preliminary Study Area & Description of the Environment

e Types of Potential Effects to be Assessed

e Assessment & Evaluation Methodology

e Commitments & Monitoring

e Consultation Plan for the Escarpment Crossing EA

e Technical and Environmental Work Plans
The technical work plans will define the ‘what and how’ of the future EA work.
These are appended to the ToR that is approved the Minister. The Work Plans
provide certainty about the scope of technical and environmental review

required to assess impacts and identify acceptable mitigation and compensation
measures.

The work plans may be of particular interest for Six Nations of Grand River staff
for involvement in developing and confirming the technical scope.

A preliminary study area has been developed as a basis for discussion with
Indigenous Communities and agencies.

The preliminary study area considers the planning history including an
important study from 2016 and the Region’s Transportation Master Plan from
2017 — both of which identified a potential extension of Bartlett Avenue
between Main Street East and Regional Road 73 and identifies this link as part

Page 3 of 6
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Discussion Topics

2.5

2.6

of the trade corridor connecting to Regional Road 20 at the future Smithville
Bypass.

Key considerations in the process to refine the preliminary study area include:

Optimize Attraction for Commercial Vehicles

Efficient connection to Hwy 20 and the Smithville Bypass
Multi-modal corridor

Escarpment grade

Avoid downtown areas

Accommodate a reasonable range of ‘Alternatives To’
Opportunities for improved connection at QEW

It is noted that the study area may be adjusted during the development of the

ToR.

The ‘Alternatives To’ the Undertaking were discussed and include:

Do Nothing

Implement Additional Traffic Management Measures

Extend Bartlett Avenue Southerly and Upgrade Park Road

Construct a New North-South Transportation Crossing between Grimsby
and Beamsville

The Project Team noted that although these are identified as four separate
alternatives, the EA may consider combinations of these. It was also noted that

the Region and local municipalities have already been implementing traffic
management measures.

Study Area Archaeological Sensitivities were discussed:

The Niagara Escarpment Crossing IEA Study Area includes the Parkridge
site (AhGv-47) that has been documented as part of the Grimsby Water
Storage System project over the past 5+ years (separate Niagara Region
Study)

Six Nations representatives involved in Stage 2 and 3 works (2017-2019)
Stage 3 resulted in discovery of 1,322 Indigenous artifacts

Stage 3 resulted in discover of human remains as a secondary
deposition — subject to initial investigation and re-internment on
December 7, 2017

2019 Stage 3 Report circulated to Indigenous Communities and Province
but not finalized

Page 4 of 6

Action By



Discussion Topics

3.1

Provincial Registrar has requested that additional investigation be
conducted, and Niagara Region has just sent out a letter of invitation
(Friday June 16, 2023) to Tanya Hill-Montour

Stage 4 Avoidance and Protection Strategy in place for other aspects of
the water supply infrastructure

Any outcomes of the current review will be incorporated into the Terms
of Reference, as appropriate. Any commitments to follow up work may
also be reflected in the Terms of Reference.

Discussion

The Region noted that the right-of-way width of the future north-south
link will be determined in the future EA but is likely to be consistent
with other Regional arterial roads with an approximately 30 m right-of-
way, 4 travel lanes and active transportation facilities. Typically, during
the EA and preliminary design, opportunities may be identified to make
localized modifications to the boulevard width or other road cross-
section elements to avoid or minimize impacts to adjacent features.

Given that the escarpment has such a high level of significance, SNGR
recommended that Region should be prepared to apply a higher level of
diligence in avoiding and mitigating impacts to natural features and
functions.

Consideration should be given to all flora and fauna species and habitats
equally, i.e., focus should be much broader than on Species at Risk.
SNGR staff expect a full biological inventory including multi-season
surveys that consider ephemeral habitat features and functions.

There is a need to consider habitat function and interdependencies
(e.g., wildlife movement, wetlands/groundwater).

There is a need to consider medicinal plants and to have this expertise
provided by SNGR staff or qualified individuals as agreed to by SNGR.
The Project Team confirmed that an approach to identifying and
potentially harvesting medicinal plants will be reflected as a
commitment in the Terms of Reference to be carried out in the future
EA.

SNGR staff recommend that the Project Team contact Kayanase
Greenhouse https://www.kayanase.ca/ to explore a potential role in the
project, including as a possible supplier of native plants for future
restoration efforts.

Capacity funding would assist in the review and input to the project.

SNGR staff requested that a site walk / study area tour. The Project
Team agreed this would be feasible but suggested that this should occur
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https://www.kayanase.ca/

Discussion Topics

during the future EA. A commitment to the site walk / study area tour
will be reflected in the Terms of Reference.

e All communication (emails) should be circulated and copied to all staff

including Dawn Russell, Lonny Bomberry, and attendees of this meeting.

e SNGR indicated virtual meetings are preferred and that a 30-day review
period would typically be sufficient.

Minutes Prepared by Alejandra Boyer
Please advise author immediately of any errors or omissions.
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From: Gillian Thompson

Sent: June 15, 2023 12:13 PM

To: Mark.LaForme@mncfn.ca; Abby.LaForme@mncfn.ca

Cc: Elmadhoon, Maged; Fraser, Scott; Ball-Condron, Rachael; Alejandra Boyer;
Khalil, Ayat

Subject: RE: Niagara Escarpment Crossing IEA Terms of Reference - Meeting with
MCFN DOCA

Good afternoon Mark and Abby,

| am Gillie Thompson, a Senior Environmental Planner from CIMA+, working with
Niagara Region on the Niagara Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental
Assessment Terms of Reference.

We are very much looking forward to our introductory discussion on Monday
June 26 at 2:30 pm.

In preparation for our meeting, we have put together some suggested discussion
topics and invite you to review and add to these, as you see fit.

We can change the order of items if you wish but we thought it may be helpful to
review the project before discussing Mississaugas of the Credit interests and
participation.

Welcome

Introductions

Project Overview and Process (including preliminary study area)
MCEFN Rights, Interests and Participation

Communications and Contacts

Next Steps

SAE A

We plan to put together a very brief presentation for the project overview, which
we will share onscreen during the meeting.

If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to reach out via email or call me
at 519-635-5733.

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

Sent: Monday, June 12, 2023 12:33 PM

To: Khalil, Ayat; Mark.LaForme@mncfn.ca; Abby.LaForme@mncfn.ca; EImadhoon, Maged; Fraser, Scott;
Ball-Condron, Rachael; Gillian Thompson; Alejandra Boyer

Subject: Niagara Escarpment Crossing IEA Terms of Reference - Meeting with MCFN DOCA

When: June 26, 2023 2:30 PM-3:30 PM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).

Where: Microsoft Teams Meeting

I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Hi everyone,

Please find the virtual meeting invite below for the early engagement invitation on June 26, 2023 at 2:30
pm.
We will provide an agenda closer to the meeting date. We look forward to the discussion.

Thankyou,
Ayat

Microsoft Teams meeting

Join on your computer, mobile app or room device
Click here to join the meeting



https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_OWNhZTA1NjQtOTI4Zi00OGFkLWFmNzYtYmUzYzI1ZjAyYTIy%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f8214d3d-965c-48cb-b18b-ed323372be42%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22f3a23d85-bde2-4371-a235-07d42e2977a0%22%7d

Meeting ID: 221 107 175 279
Passcode: pEw8RS
Download Teams | Join on the web

Or call in (audio only)
+1289-302-3216,480464417# Canada, Niagara Falls

Phone Conference ID: 480 464 417#
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
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CiM

Meeting Minutes

Meeting: Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation Pre-
Consultation Meeting

Project: Niagara Region Escarpment Crossing IEA ToR

Date and Time: Monday, June 26, 2023, 2:30 to 3:30 pm

Location: Virtual Meeting (MS Teams)
Attendees:

Name Representing
Maged Elmadhoon Niagara Region
Ayat Khalil Niagara Region
Scott Fraser Niagara Region
Rachel Ball-Condron Niagara Region

Mississaugas of the Credit First
Nation (MCFN)

Mark LaForme

Abby LaForme MCEN

Adam LaForme MCFN

Gillian (Gillie) Thompson CIMA+

Alejandra (Ali) Boyer CIMA+

Discussion Topics Action By
1. Introductions and Meeting Purpose & Objectives

1.1  Niagara Region provided a welcome to MCFN staff. All parties introduced
themselves and CIMA+ reviewed the suggested discussion topics (below) and
invited SNGR to add to the:

e Project Overview and Terms of Reference Process
e Preliminary Study Area
e Discussion of MCFN Interests and Participation

o Next Steps

2. Project Overview and Terms of Reference Process

2.1 This project plans for a north-south transportation crossing of the Niagara
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
public. It is also subject to the written approval by the Minister of the
Environment, Conservation and Parks.

The development of the ToR consists of 5 Steps:
Preliminary Draft Outline

Draft ToR

Proposed ToR

Submission of Proposed ToR to MECP

v kW oe

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

Through fall of 2023, MCFN staff will have an opportunity to review the Draft
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

o Assessment & Evaluation Methodology

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

The work plans may be of particular interest for MCFN staff for involvement in
developing and confirming the technical scope.

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

e Optimize Attraction for Commercial Vehicles
e Efficient connection to Hwy 20 and the Smithville Bypass

Action By



Page 4 of 5

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

Region
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3. Discussion
3.1 e MCFN indicated that staff capacity is an issue, particularly

environmental specialist staff. MCFN requested that technical reports
be provided to Abby LaForme who will coordinate internal review.

e The Project Team noted that MCFN may have a particular interest in
reviewing materials related to archaeology, cultural heritage, and
natural environment — these materials include the technical work plans
and applicable sections of the Terms of Reference. The Project Team will
also be looking to MCFN to confirm the engagement approach for the
future EA and any commitments to further work to be included within
the Terms of Reference.

Region

e MCFN noted that sites in the area assessed prior to 2011 may require
reassessment or further assessment per current standards. The Project Region
Team agreed that this will be noted in the Archaeological Work Plan.

e The Project Team explained that the preliminary study area has been
identified as an area within which alternatives will be developed and
evaluated. However, during the EA, all natural, cultural and socio-
economic conditions and sensitivities will be investigated and factored
into the development and evaluation of alternatives. The presence of
and protection / avoidance of significant features and functions will
determine the future design.

e |t was confirmed that all correspondence should be circulated to Mark,
Abby and Adam.

e MCFN noted their preference for virtual meetings virtual and that
internal review time is around 3 weeks depending on the materials.

Minutes Prepared by Alejandra Boyer
Please advise author immediately of any errors or omissions.



From: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: June 27, 2023 8:28 AM

To: info@hdi.land; Todd Williams; toddwilliams@hdi.land

Cc: Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; lan Dobrindt; Gillian Thompson; Alejandra
Boyer; Ogunniyi, Cassandra; Kon, Brian

Subject: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara -
Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment

Attachments: hmmLLetteLNLagaLa_BnammenLCmSﬂngJEAlaB_Nnnc&of—|

Commencement-HCCC.pdf; Niagara IFA ToR Notice of Study |

Commencement_Final.pdf
I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Sge:no/She:koli/Shekon,

As outlined in my email dated May 12, 2023, Niagara Region will be formally initiating
the preparation a Terms of Reference (ToR) that will guide the future Environmental
Assessment (EA) for a north-south transportation crossing of the Niagara Escarpment
able to accommodate commercial vehicles and other transportation modes, between
the Queen Elizabeth Way (QEW) and Regional Road 20 (potential future Smithville
Bypass) within the Town of Grimsby, Town of Lincoln, and Township of West Lincoln in
Niagara Region.

Kindly refer to the attached cover letter and the Notice of Study Commencement. For
more information about this project, please visit the project webpage
www.niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing

We look forward to continuing to work with Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs
Council, through HDI, throughout the project and would be pleased to meet with you at
any time to discuss the project and respond to any questions you may have.

Nya:weh,
Maged

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



Public Works Transportation Services

Niagara,/l/ Region 1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box 1042, Thorold, ON L2V 4T7
Tel: 905-980-6000 Toll-Free: 1-800-263-7215 Fax: 905-685-0013

niagararegion.ca

June 27, 2023

Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council
c/o Haudenosaunee Development Institute
P.O. Box 714

Ohsweken, ON NOA 1MO0

Sent Via Email to:
HDI General Mailbox
Todd Williams, HDI Monitoring Program Coordinator

Sge:no/She:koli/Shekon,

The Regional Municipality of Niagara is formally initiating the development of a Terms of
Reference (ToR) that will guide the future preparation of an Environmental Assessment
(EA) for a north-south transportation crossing of the Niagara Escarpment suitable to
accommodate commercial vehicles and other transportation modes, between the Queen
Elizabeth Way (QEW) and potential Smithville Bypass of Regional Road 20 in the vicinity
of Grimsby, Beamsville and Smithville.

The study area is depicted in the attached key map which may be subject to refinement
through the ToR process. The study area represents the area within which ‘alternatives to
will be generated and where supporting technical studies will be focused.

The north-south link is being considered in order to provide commercial vehicles with a
more appropriately designed and efficient routing option for goods movement, which will
result in greater safety for local communities as trucks are discouraged from routing
through downtown areas.

The Terms of Reference is a strategic work plan that sets out the activities for the
subsequent EA including the requirements for supporting technical work, the range of
alternatives to be considered, the decision-making framework, and consultation plan. The
Terms of Reference is subject to formal review by Government Agencies, Indigenous
Communities and the public and is subject to the written approval by the Minister of the
Environment, Conservation and Parks.

Additional information is provided on the City’s website, which will be updated throughout
the study: www.niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing



http://www.niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing

Public Works Transportation Services

Niagara,/l/ Region 1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box 1042, Thorold, ON L2V 4T7
Tel: 905-980-6000 Toll-Free: 1-800-263-7215 Fax: 905-685-0013

niagararegion.ca

Niagara Region intends to undertake the development of the Terms of Reference in a
manner that is inclusive of Indigenous interests and participation, and respectful of
Indigenous rights.

As follow-up to my letter of May 12, 2023, Niagara Region staff and the Project Team
welcome an opportunity to meet with HDI at any time to discuss the project, respond to
any questions or concerns you may have and discuss HDI participation in and input to the
development of the Terms of Reference.

Please contact me by email at Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca or by phone at 905-
980-6000 ext. 3583.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Nya:weh,

W Cnadioon

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. (he/him)
Manager, Transportation Planning
Transportation Services Division

Public Works, Niagara Region


mailto:Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca

Public Works Transportation Services
Niagara'/l/ Region 1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box 1042, Thorold, ON L2V 4T7

Tel: 905-980-6000 Toll-Free: 1-800-263-7215 Fax: 905-685-0013
niagararegion.ca
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From: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: June 27, 2023 8:27 AM

To: Mark.LaForme@mncfn.ca; Abby.LaForme@mncfn.ca;
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

Attachments: Cover | etter-Niagara Fscarpment Crossing IFA ToR-Naticeof |

Commencement-MCFN.pdf; Niagara IFA ToR Notice of Study |

Commencement_Final.pdf
I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Aanii ,

Thank you for meeting with the Region on June 26, 2023 The Project Team is hopeful
that our meeting with you at such an early stage shows our commitment to be respectful
of Indigenous rights and inclusive of Indigenous interests and participation.

As discussed, the Region will be formally initiating the preparation of a Terms of
Reference (ToR) that will guide the future Environmental Assessment (EA) for a north-
south transportation crossing of the Niagara Escarpment suitable to accommodate
commercial vehicles and other modes of transportation, between the Queen Elizabeth
Way (QEW) and Regional Road 20 (potential future Smithville Bypass) within the Town
of Grimsby, Town of Lincoln, and Township of West Lincoln in Niagara Region.

Kindly refer to the attached cover letter and the Notice of Study Commencement. For
more information about this project, please visit the project webpage
WWW.niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing

We look forward to continuing to work with Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation
throughout the project and would be pleased to meet with you at any time to discuss the
project and respond to any questions you may have.

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

Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation
2789 Mississauga Road R.R. #6
Hagersville, ON NOA 1HO

Sent Via Email To:

Mark LaForme, Director, Department of Consultation and Accommodation
Abby LaForme, Consultation Manager

Adam LaForme, Archaeological Operations Supervisor

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

We thank Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation staff for meeting with Niagara Region
staff and the Project Team on June 26, 2023 and we look forward to working with Six
Nations of the Grand River in developing the Terms of Reference. We anticipate meeting
again in late summer / early fall 2023.

If you have any questions or concerns, please contact me by email at
Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca or by phone at 905-980-6000 ext. 3583.

Miigwech,

V. Onachoon

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
Niagara'/l/ Region

niagararegion.ca

1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box 1042, Thorold, ON L2V 4T7
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

Attachments: tmLELLetteLNLagaLa_BnammenLCmssngEAlaB_Nonc&of—|

Commencement-MNO.pdf; Niagara IEA ToR Notice of Study |

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

We look forward to working with Metis Nation of Ontario in this project and would be
pleased to meet with you at any time to discuss the project and respond to any
questions you may have.

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

Métis Nation of Ontario
Suite 1100, 11th Floor
66 Slater Street
Ottawa, ON, K1P 5H1

Sent Via Email To:
Métis Consultation Unit

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
welcome an opportunity to meet with Métis Nation of Ontario at any time to discuss the
project, respond to any questions or concerns you may have and discuss Métis
participation in and input to the development of the Terms of Reference.

Please contact me by email at Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca or by phone at 905-
980-6000 ext. 3583.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Maarsii,

M. Onacthoon

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

To: Lonny Bomberry; LRCS@sixnations.ca; laurenjones@sixnations.ca;
wsma@sixnations.ca; Irluo2@sixnations.ca; dawnrussell@sixnations.ca;
tanyabhill-montour@sixnations.ca

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

Attachments: Cover Letter-Niagara Escarpment Crossing IEA ToR-Noticeof |

Commencement-SNGR.pdf; Niagara IEA ToR Noticeof Study |

Commencement_Final.pdf
I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Sge:no/She:koli/Shekon,

Thank you for meeting with the Region on June 20, 2023 The Project Team is hopeful
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
www.nhiagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing

We look forward to continuing to work with Six Nations of the Grand River throughout
the project and would be pleased to meet with you at any time to discuss the project
and respond to any questions you may have.

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

Six Nations of the Grand River
1695 Chiefswood Rd. PO Box 5000
Ohsweken, ON NOA 1MO

Sent Via Email To:

Lonny Bomberry, Lands & Resources Director

Peter Graham, Consultation SupervisorTanya Hill-Montour, Archaeological Supervisor
Lauren Jones, Wildlife and Stewardship Manager

Lauren Vanderlingen, Wildlife and Stewardship Management Assistant

Daylon Gee, Land Use Officer

Dawn Russell, Consultation Administrative Assistant

Tanya Hill-Montour, Archaeological Supervisor

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

We thank Six Nations of the Grand River staff for meeting with Niagara Region staff and
the Project Team on June 20, 2023, and we look forward to working with Six Nations of
the Grand River in developing the Terms of Reference. We anticipate meeting again in
late summer / early fall 2023.

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

Sent: July 5,2023 11:31 AM

To: Alejandra Boyer

Cc: Gillian Thompson; Khalil, Ayat

Subject: FW: Additional Information about the Niagara Escarpment Crossing
Attachments: Cover | etter-Niagara Fscarpment Crossing IFA ToR-Noticeof |

Commencement-MNO.pdf
I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Hi Ali,

Please coordinate the meeting as requested by Laura. | am only available the first week
of August (until Aug 4) since | will be on vacation after.

Thanks
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

Niagara / l Region

From: Laura Desaulniers <LauraD@metisnation.org>

Sent: Wednesday, July 5, 2023 11:04 AM

To: Kon, Brian <Brian.Kon@niagararegion.ca>

Cc: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Subject: RE: Additional Information about the Niagara Escarpment Crossing

CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the Niagara Region email

system. Use caution when clicking links or opening attachments unless you recognize the sender
and know the content is safe.

Good Morning Brian and Maged,

My name is Laura and | work in the LRC Branch at the Metis Nation of Ontario. President Derrick Pont
has asked me to set up a virtual meeting with you to discuss the Niagara Escarpment Crossing Project.



If you could provide 3 dates and times that would work for your team during the first week of August
anytime after 3 pm | will bring them back to President Pont to see which one works best.

Thank you and talk soon!

Kind Regards,

Laura Desaulniers (she/her)

Lands, Resources & Consultations (LRC) Branch Coordinator
Métis Nation of Ontario

Thunder Bay, ON

E: Laurad@metisnation.org

C: 807-375-0208

W: www.metisnation.org

Mon-Fri 7:30 am — 3:30 pm EST

From: DJ Pont <pontdj@hotmail.com>

Sent: July 4, 2023 7:17 PM

To: Kon, Brian <Brian.Kon@niagararegion.ca>; Laura Desaulniers <LauraD@ metisnation.org>
Cc: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Subject: Re: Additional Information about the Niagara Escarpment Crossing

Bonswer Brian

As you are aware the Metis Nation do not take part in public meetings. As in our first email we
have requested our own meeting with the Niagara Region.
| have reached out to MNO LRC Branch to help set up this meeting

Derrick Pont

President

Niagara Region Metis Council
Region 9 Consultation Committee
Metis Nation of Ontario

From: Kon, Brian <Brian.Kon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: July 4, 2023 5:31 PM

To: Jessica Riel-Johns <ead@nrnc.ca>; aed@nrnc.ca <aed@nrnc.ca>; Jennifer Dockstader
<ExecutiveDirector@fenfc.org>; Wendy Sturgeon (edncnw@gmail.com) <edncnw@gmail.com>; DJ Pont
<pontdj@hotmail.com>; jason@npaamb.com <jason@npaamb.com>

Cc: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Subject: Additional Information about the Niagara Escarpment Crossing

Tanisi everyone,

As | shared in my email of June 23, the Region is preparing the early stages for the Niagara
Escarpment Crossing that will redirect commercial and other vehicles away from downtown



areas as they travel between the QEW and the potential Smithville Bypass of Regional Road
20. | have attached a letter prepared by the Region that is being used to invite the public to be a
part of the process and discussions. We are asking local Indigenous agencies to participate as
we realize you will have specific concerns about the project and its impact on the land, water,
fish, birds and wildlife within our community; so we are looking for your input. The governments
representing the Mississauga’s of the Credit, Six Nations of the Grand River and the Métis
Nation of Ontario have also been contacted under the province’s duty to consult.

The attached letter has information about the project along with relevant contact information if
you wish to participate or if you have questions. | will do my best to keep you each informed as
the project progresses, but if you do have specific concerns | recommend reaching out to
Maged EImadhoon from Niagara Region who is overseeing this project — he has been copied on
this email and his full contact information is enclosed in the attached letter.

In addition to the letter, this link niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing will
provide access to information about the project.

All my best as we head full into summer!

Kiskisitotawatanik (let’s remember them),
aniki kika kaki-prkiwicik (those that didn't come home)

Brian Kon (he/him)

Indigenous Relations Advisor

Growth, Strategy, and Economic Development

Niagara Region

Phone: 905-980-6000 ext. 3365 Toll-free: 1-800-263-7215
WWW.niagararegion.ca

1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, Thorold L2V 4T7

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

Attention: This email originated from outside the MNO. Please use caution when clicking links, opening
attachments or replying to requests for account information or funds.


https://niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing/

From: Alejandra Boyer

Sent: July 20, 2023 8:19 PM

To: Chazz Pitts

Cc: Gillian Thompson; ElImadhoon, Maged; Khalil, Ayat

Subject: RE: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara -

Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment
Hi Chazz,
It was a pleasure meeting you on Tuesday.

| think it will be more efficient if you send me your notes and | can incorporate them into our meeting
minutes.
But if you prefer to receive the draft and provide input at that time, that fine too.

Thank you,
Ali

ALEJANDRA BOYER
Planner / Transportation

T 289-288-0287 ext. 6847 M 416-357-3153 F 289-288-0285
400-3027 Harvester Road, Burlington, ON L7N 3G7 CANADA

: r KINCENTRIC}
C I M Engineering b Best Employer
for people

CAMADA Z0Z1

Follow us

From: ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: Thursday, July 20, 2023 2:39 PM

To: Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com>

Cc: Alejandra Boyer <Alejandra.Boyer@cima.ca>; Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca>; Khalil,
Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>

Subject: RE: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara - Escarpment Crossing
Individual Environmental Assessment

I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Hi Chazz,



It was nice meeting with you and HDI team as well. | have copied the consultant team.
Ali will be preparing a meeting minutes, which will be shared with you for review.

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

www.niagararegion.ca

Niagara /iﬂeginn

From: Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com>

Sent: Thursday, July 20, 2023 2:15 PM

To: ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Subject: Re: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara - Escarpment Crossing
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

Afternoon Mr. EImadhoon,
Nice to meet with your team Tuesday.

| was hoping you could please confirm who would be best to coordinate the meeting minutes with, and
ensure we are on the same page with any action/take away items. Thank you.

Regards,

Chazz Pitts
Coordinator

On Wed, 12 Jul 2023 at 11:54, ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca> wrote:

Thanks Chazz



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

Niagara //Regiun

From: Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com>

Sent: Wednesday, July 12, 2023 11:48 AM

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

Morning,

Thank you for the official invite. | have gone into the invite and sent them to Mr. Linklater and Mr.
Detlor.

We look forward to speaking with you in regards to this project.



Regards,

Chazz Pitts

Coordinator

On Wed, 12 Jul 2023 at 10:13, EImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca> wrote:

Hi Chazz,

The meeting information has been confirmed. | will forward to you the meeting invite. |
appreciate if you provide the names and emails of HDI staff attending the meeting to
add them to the meeting invite.

Meeting Location: Canada Games Park - Beatties Room (2021 Canada Games Way, Thorold, ON, L2V
4Y6)

Parking: free onsite for user

https://www.canadagamespark.ca/p/about/directions-and-parking

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

Niagara /iﬂegiun

From: Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com>

Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2023 5:16 PM

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

Evening,

As initially mentioned, in person is our preference.

Once finalized, if you could please send me the meeting information or send an official google invite.
Much appreciated.

Regards,



Chazz Pitts

Coordinator

On Tue, 11 Jul 2023 at 16:05, EImadhoon, Maged <Maged.ElImadhoon@niagararegion.ca> wrote:

Thanks Chazz for confirming. We can work something out regarding the time. | am
sure it should be fine for few team members if it wasn’t too long.

| still need to know if you are still looking for in-person meeting or virtual in order to
book a boardroom.

Regards

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

Sent: Tuesday, July 11, 2023 3:59 PM

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

Afternoon,

The morning of Tuesday the 18th will work. However, is there any flexibility if we go over that hour
time frame?

Regards,

Chazz Pitts

Coordinator

On Mon, 10 Jul 2023 at 11:18, EImadhoon, Maged <Maged.EImadhoon@niagararegion.ca> wrote:

Hi Chazz,

Thanks for the update, and yes, they are still open.



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

Niagara /lReginn

From: Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com>

Sent: Monday, July 10, 2023 11:08 AM

To: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.ElImadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Subject: Re: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara - Escarpment Crossing
Individual Environmental Assessment

CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the Niagara Region email

system. Use caution when clicking links or opening attachments unless you recognize the
sender and know the content is safe.

Morning,

Apologies for the delay in communication. We are still tying up some loose ends, but | will confirm
this afternoon. Are these dates and times still open ?



Regards,

Chazz Pitts

Coordinator

On Thu, 6 Jul 2023 at 08:48, EImadhoon, Maged <Maged.ElImadhoon@niagararegion.ca> wrote:

Good morning Chazz,

Niagara staff and the consultant team are available the following meeting dates:

+ Tuesday, July 18 (10:00 a.m. to 11:00 a.m.)
+ Monday, July 31 (1:00 p.m.to 2:00 p.m.)
+ Tues. August 1 (1:00 p.m. to 2:00 p.m.)

Please let me know which of the above dates work for you and HDI team, and your
preference. | will then send a meeting invite with all the meeting information. Please
provide names and emails of HDI staff attending.

Please confirm if you still want the meeting to be in-person at the Niagara Region
HQ or virtual.

Thanks

Maged

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. (he/him)


https://urldefense.com/v3/__http:/p.m.to__;!!PiBYz-HF60VMVQ!XRffxTEdHRgcBzpAnPHk9hOE5Y714FcODFYqm5V3cWlzCV_zLEJpBcbNK6byp0S0trmc7rESkqgFnYNAXlTO9EbPSFU$

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

From: ElImadhoon, Maged

Sent: Wednesday, July 5, 2023 12:58 PM

To: Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com>

Cc: Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca>; Alejandra Boyer <Alejandra.Boyer@cima.ca>
Subject: RE: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara - Escarpment Crossing
Individual Environmental Assessment

Hi Chazz,

Just wanted to update you on the meeting date. Unfortunately, July 11 will not work
for all Region staff who will be attending the meeting. | will provide you soon with
few meeting options to choose from.

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

Sent: Tuesday, July 4, 2023 11:58 AM

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

Thank you for the update!



On Tue, 4 Jul 2023 at 11:44, Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.EImadhoon@niagararegion.ca> wrote:

Hi Chazz,

It looks that July 11 at 1:00 pm works for most of the team. | am just waiting for
confirmation from the consultant team.

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

Sent: Tuesday, July 4, 2023 11:27 AM

To: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>; Gillian Thompson
<Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca>

Subject: Re: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara - Escarpment Crossing
Individual Environmental Assessment




CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the Niagara Region

email system. Use caution when clicking links or opening attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Morning,

| just wanted to circle back as we start the week, and see if there has been any progress in
finalizing a date.

Much appreciated.

Regards,

Chazz Pitts

Coordinator

On Thu, 29 Jun 2023 at 13:51, Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com> wrote:

Afternoon,

Correct. That is our preference. Thank you.

Regards,

Chazz Pitts

Coordinator



On Thu, 29 Jun 2023 at 13:47, ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>
wrote:

Good afternoon,

| am still waiting to confirm staff availability. Just to confirm, my understanding is
that in-persons meeting at the Niagara Region HQ is preferable.

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

Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 1:44 PM

To: Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca>

Cc: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.ElImadhoon@niagararegion.ca>




Subject: Re: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara - Escarpment
Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment

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

For those who are unable to attend in person, perhaps we can arrange a hybrid style and invite
them via zoom. Thank you for getting back to me.

Regards,

Chazz Pitts

Coordinator

On Thu, Jun 29, 2023 at 1:40 PM Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca> wrote:

Good afternoon Chazz,

By way of this email, | am copying Niagara Region Project Manager Maged ElImadhoon. |
believe Maged is waiting for internal staff responses. We are hoping to confirm in the next
few days.

| did see your previous email regarding July 7 and this date unfortunately does not work for
the team.



If we can hold July 11 and 18 for now and hopefully have confirmation soon. It sounds like an
in-persons meeting is preferable which may limit availability as well.

Thank you

Gillie

Gillie Thompson B.Sc., MCIP, RPP
Senior Planner / Senior Project Manager

Transportation

T 289 288-0287 ext. :6832
C519-635-5733

400-3027 Harvester Road Burlington Ontario L7N 3G7

B . e e
i % for people St

From: Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com>
Sent: Thursday, June 29, 2023 1:22 PM
To: Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca>



https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.google.com/maps/search/3027*Harvester*Road*Burlington*Ontario*L7N*3G7?entry=gmail&source=g__;KysrKysr!!PiBYz-HF60VMVQ!X83rE03yE84r-aynsQOt0pYiBEsIcbl805W0qvJU70BhiqXtBo6bYOqLTgsBtGgl0hAKQc6_L0wIDGnp3621m3my2Mo$

Subject: Re: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara - Escarpment
Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment

I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Afternoon,

| apologize | missed one of your emails this morning. Just wanted to confirm July 18th is still
an option on our end.

Regards,

Chazz Pitts

Coordinator

On Thu, 29 Jun 2023 at 12:54, Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com> wrote:

Afternoon,

Would there be the potential to bump this meeting up to Friday July 7, sometime in
the afternoon?

| am doing my best to coordinate this meeting in person for the 11th otherwise, and we have
no problem coming down. | am waiting to confirm a couple of things on our end, and will
have to circle back later today to let you know if we will manage to come down on Tuesday.
Please let me know if Friday the 7th may work on your end.

Regards,



Chazz Pitts

Coordinator

On Wed, 28 Jun 2023 at 12:26, Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca> wrote:

Good afternoon Ms. Pitts,

Our team is available the morning of Tuesday July 11, 2023 for a virtual
meeting. Is Zoom an acceptable platform? If so, we can set up the Zoom
meeting invitation.

If an in-person meeting is preferred, kindly advise on the preferred
location (HDI offices or Niagara Region offices) and we will have to
confirm that the July 11 date still works for our team.

Many thanks

Gillie

Gillie Thompson B.Sc., MCIP, RPP
Senior Environmental Planner



Transportation
T 289 288-0287 ext. :6832

C519-635-5733

400-3027 Harvester Road Burlington Ontario L7N 3G7

C IM Engineering YEARS
for people

From: ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 4:34 PM

To: Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com>

Cc: Khalil, Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Gillian Thompson
<Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca>; Alejandra Boyer <Alejandra.Boyer@cima.ca>; Alejandra
Boyer <Alejandra.Boyer@cima.ca>; Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>
Subject: Re: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara - Escarpment
Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment

I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Good afternoon Ms. Pitts,

| am copying the consultant team to coordinate a time that works best for everyone.


https://urldefense.com/v3/__https:/www.google.com/maps/search/3027*Harvester*Road*Burlington*Ontario*L7N*3G7?entry=gmail&source=g__;KysrKysr!!PiBYz-HF60VMVQ!X83rE03yE84r-aynsQOt0pYiBEsIcbl805W0qvJU70BhiqXtBo6bYOqLTgsBtGgl0hAKQc6_L0wIDGnp3621m3my2Mo$

Thanks,

Maged

From: Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com>

Sent: Tuesday, June 27, 2023 2:55:13 p.m.

To: ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Subject: Fwd: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara - Escarpment
Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment

CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the Niagara Region

email system. Use caution when clicking links or opening attachments unless you
recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Afternoon,

| am reaching out in hopes to coordinate a sit down meeting in regards to the proposed
project. As outlined in Mr.detlor's previous communications, we are quite eager to sit down
as soon as possible.

Please let me know if we can sit down Tuesday July 11, Friday the 14 or Tuesday July 18.
Thank you.

Regards,

Chazz Pitts



Coordinator

---------- Forwarded message ---------

From: Aaron Detlor <aarondetlor@gmail.com>

Date: Tue, 27 Jun 2023 at 14:39

Subject: Re: Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara - Escarpment
Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment

To: Tracey General <traceyghdi@gmail.com>, <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>
Cc: Aaron Detlor <aarondetlor@gmail.com>, Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>, Todd
Williams <toddwilliams@hdi.land>, Raechelle Williams <raechellewilliams@hdi.land>,
Sharann Martin <sharannmartin@hdi.land>, Chazz Pitts <chazz@detlorlaw.com>

Good Afternoon

| have asked Ms. Pitts to set up a meeting as soon as possible as we have a significant
interest in the proposed project which will impair, infringe and interfere with
Haudenosaunee rights and interests and treaties including but not limited to the Nanfan
Treaty of 1701, the Pledge of the Crown Treaty of April 27, 1815, the April 3, 1764,
Johnson "Preliminary Articles of Peace, Friendship and Alliance” and the August
6, 1764 "Treaty of Peace and Alliance”.

Regards,

Aaron Detlor

On Jun 27, 2023, at 10:16 AM, Tracey General <traceyghdi@gmail.com>
wrote:

Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca




The Regional Municipality of Niagara Confidentiality Notice The information contained in
this communication including any attachments may be confidential, is intended only for the
use of the recipient(s) named above, and may be legally privileged. If the reader of this
message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution, disclosure, or copying of this communication, or any of its contents, is strictly
prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please re-send this
communication to the sender and permanently delete the original and any copy of it from
your computer system. Thank you.



Meeting Minutes

Meeting:

Project:

Date and
Time:

Location:

Attendees:

Name

Meeting with Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs
Council (HCCC) through their delegate -
Haudenosaunee Development Institute (HDI)

Niagara Region Escarpment Crossing Individual
Environmental Assessment - Terms of Reference

Tuesday, July 18, 2023
10:00 to 11:00 am

Canada Games Park - Beatties Room
2021 Canada Games Way, Thorold, ON, L2V 4Y6

Representing

CiM

Brian Doolittle

Aaron Detlor

Jake Linklater
Chazz Pitts

Scott Fraser

HDI
HDI
HDI
HDI

Niagara Region

Maged ElImadhoon Niagara Region
Ayat Khalil Niagara Region
Gillian Thompson CIMA+
Alejandra (Ali) Boyer CIMA+

Discussion Topics

1.

1.1

1.2

Introductions

Action By

Mr. Doolittle opened the meeting with prayer and thanksgivings to
the natural world and all living things.

All parties introduced themselves.

Discussion

400-3027 Harvester Road, Burlington ON. L7N 3G7 T: 289-288-0287 F: 289-288-0285

cima.ca
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Discussion Topics Action By

2.1 Discussion points are summarized as follows:

e Niagara Region confirmed that the Ministry of Environment,
Conservation and Parks (MECP) delegates the procedural
aspects of rights-based consultation given that the Crown’s
duty to consult is triggered in relation to the proposed project,
under the Environmental Assessment Act (EAA)). A formal Region
delegation letter has yet to be issued MECP, however this letter
will be shared with HDI upon receipt.

e The nature of engagement during previous related studies
was discussed. HDI noted that Section 1.2.2 of the Provincial
Policy Statement states, “Planning authorities shall engage
with Indigenous communities” and does not believe that this
engagement took place in the 2016 Niagara Escarpment
Crossing Master Plan and the 2017 Transportation
Masterplan. [/t is noted that the 2016 Niagara Escarpment
Crossing Maser Plan was conducted as planning study and not
formalized under the Municipal Class Environmental
Assessment Master Plan process, as approved under the EAA.
The Transportation Master Plan was undertaken as a Master
Plan per the Municipal Class Environmental Assessment]. The
Region agreed to look into and confirm to HDI the nature of
the Indigenous community engagement that was undertaken
for the two studies.

Region

e HDI stated having a significant interest in the proposed project
as it will impair, infringe and interfere with Haudenosaunee
rights and interests and treaties (including but not limited to the
Nanfan Treaty of 1701, Pledge of the Crown Treaty of April 27,
1815, Preliminary Articles of Peace, Friendship and Alliance of
April 3, 1764, Treaty of Peace and Alliance of August 6, 1764 as
listed in the HDI email of Jun 27, 2023)

e HDI stated that the EAA has no provision to address treaty
rights. [post meeting note: although not discussed in detail at
the meeting, it is noted here that the EAA includes references
to the protection of aboriginal and treaty rights (Section 2.1,
Section 16(6), Section 38.2(2) and consultation (Section
40(2)(c)].

e The Region Project Team indicated that while the current
north-south transportation link / escarpment crossing
references earlier work, the Region is completing the current
study as an Individual Environmental Assessment (IEA)



Page 3 of 4

Discussion Topics Action By

involving two distinct steps: 1) preparation of a Terms of
Reference, for approval by the Minister of Environment,
Conservation and Parks, and 2) completion of the
Environmental Assessment that follows Terms of Reference.

e The Region clarified that the project is in the Terms of
Reference stage and that they see this stage as an opportunity
to incorporate Indigenous community voices, concerns and
expectations for the future Environmental Assessment.
Feedback will be incorporated in the Terms of Reference work
plans and commitments to future work. The Region indicated
that they had a slide deck prepared as an information package
to explain the elements of the Terms of Reference.

e HDI indicated that they did not wish to review the slide deck /
information package as they will not be participating in the
Terms of Reference process.

e HDI stated that the Region’s request for HDI to participate in
the ToR / EA is an abandonment of Indigenous engagement
obligations. HDI has not consented to the EA as being sufficient
for satisfying engagement requirements.

e HDI referenced the Two Row Wampum as a way that each
nation will respect the ways of the other and walk equally in
the discussions. A key aspect of this involves ‘levelling the
playing field” in terms of monetary compensation and
resources through an agreement developed and signed outside
of the EA process. Compensation would be provided in
recognition of economic impacts (i.e., land value). The Region
clarified that the project has yet to be defined through the IEA
process and therefore the footprint (ha) is not known. The
proposed transportation link is conceptualized as an arterial
roadway.

e HDI noted that the Region’s Draft Indigenous Action Plan
references UNDRIP and suggested that the only way for this
project to honour the Region’s commitment is to sign an
agreement with HDI.

e HDI referenced the agreement developed and signed with the
City of Hamilton for the Red Hill Valley Expressway project
which outlined sub agreements including a Joint Stewardship
Board, ecological restoration, medicinal plants, maintenance
and financial models. [post meeting note: Niagara Region



Discussion Topics

2.2 Mr. Doolittle concluded the meeting with a closing reflection and

prayer.

Project Team has obtained and reviewed the City of Hamilton
Agreement].

HDI indicated interest in being involved in field and
monitoring programs. The Project Team clarified that field
programs and monitoring are not part of the Terms of
Reference but will be part of the future EA. It is premature to
undertake a field walk at this time but would be organized in
future.

Niagara Region will take HDI’s request to create a separate
but parallel governance/process and financial commitment
back to senior leadership for consideration.

HDI requested a follow up meeting with the Niagara Region.
The Region committed to meeting with HDI following internal
review and discussion. The Region will identify potential
meetings dates for consideration / confirmation by HDI.

Page 4 of 4

Action By

Region

Region

Minutes Prepared by Alejandra Boyer. Please advise author immediately of any errors or

omissions.



Meeting Minutes

Meeting:
Meeting

Project:
Date and Time:

Location:

Attendees:

Name

Métis Nation of Ontario (MNQO) Pre-Consultation

Niagara Region Escarpment Crossing IEA ToR
Wednesday, August 2", 2023, 3:00 to 4:30 pm

Virtual Meeting (MS Teams)

Representing

CiM

Maged Elmadhoon

Niagara Region

Scott Fraser

Niagara Region

Ayat Khalil

Niagara Region

Brian Kon

Niagara Region

President Derrick Pont

Niagara Region Métis Council
(MNO)

Lisa Rutherford

Niagara Region Métis Council
(MNO)

Rob Barber

Niagara Region Métis Council
(MNO)

President Kathleen Anderson

MNO Thames Bluewater Métis
Council (TBWMC)- London,
Ontario

Rhonda Gilpin-Hartley

MNO Thames Bluewater Métis
Council (TBWMC)

Marry MacDougall

Niagara Region Métis Council
(MNO)

Laura Desaulniers

Niagara Region Métis Council
(MNO)

Gillian (Gillie) Thompson

CIMA+

Alejandra (Ali) Boyer

CIMA+

400-3027 Harvester Road, Burlington ON. L7N 3G7 T:289-288-0287 F: 289-288-0285

cima.ca
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Discussion Topics

1.

11

2.1

2.2

Introductions and Meeting Purpose & Objectives

Niagara Region (Brian) provided a welcome to MNO staff. All parties introduced
themselves and CIMA+ reviewed the suggested discussion topics (below) and
invited MNO to add to the:

e Project Overview and Terms of Reference Process
e Preliminary Study Area
e Discussion of MNO Interests and Participation

e Next Steps

Project Overview and Terms of Reference Process

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

LA

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

Through fall of 2023, MNO staff will have an opportunity to review the Draft
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
2.3 The technical work plans will define the ‘what and how’ of the future EA work.

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

The work plans may be of particular interest for MNO staff for involvement in
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
e Multi-modal corridor

e Escarpment grade

e Avoid downtown areas

e Accommodate a reasonable range of ‘Alternatives To’

e Opportunities for improved connection at QEW

It is noted that the study area may be adjusted during the development of the
ToR.

The ‘Alternatives To’ the Undertaking were discussed and include:

e Do Nothing

o Implement Additional Traffic Management Measures

e Extend Bartlett Avenue Southerly and Upgrade Park Road

e Construct a New North-South Transportation Crossing between Grimsby
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

e The Niagara Escarpment Crossing IEA Study Area includes the Parkridge
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

e Six Nations representatives involved in Stage 2 and 3 works (2017-2019)

e Stage 3 resulted in discovery of 1,322 Indigenous artifacts

e Stage 3 resulted in discover of human remains as a secondary
deposition — subject to initial investigation and re-internment on
December 7, 2017

e 2019 Stage 3 Report circulated to Indigenous Communities and Province

but not finalized
e Provincial Registrar has requested that additional investigation be

conducted, and Niagara Region has just sent out a letter of invitation

(Friday June 16, 2023).

e Stage 4 Avoidance and Protection Strategy in place for other aspects of

the water supply infrastructure

Any outcomes of the current review will be incorporated into the Terms  Region
of Reference, as appropriate. Any commitments to follow up work may

also be reflected in the Terms of Reference.

Discussion

MNO (President Derrick) asked if the private property along Park Road South
and Bartlett Avenue will be acquired by the Region to build the crossing.

Project Team (Gillie) noted that the land purchase will be subjective to
the location of Escarpment Crossing connection. The land acquiring
assessment will be part of the next phase of the EA process. This phase
focus on the planning alternatives, including Bartlett extension, which
might be connected to a new escarpment crossing without a direct
connection to Park Road South.

MNO (Marry) asked if there will be consideration of the cumulative effects

given the other major projects happening in this study area.

Project Team noted that the cumulative effects will be considered with
MECP. This will also involve different departments from the Region and
the utilities stakeholder to minimize the cumulative effects. The
reporting of the cumulative effects will be part of the next phase of the
EA.

MNO (Kathleen) asked if the planned time-horizon of the escarpment crossing
corridor encompasses all the planned future work.

Project Team noted that the planning horizon is 20-years.



- The Region Project Manger (Maged) noted the other planned projects
within the study area, including highway 20 Smithville Bypass EA that
will be initiated later this year. The construction of the Smithville bypass
will be subjective to the EA completion and budget.

- Region Official Plan has been updated recently to accommodate the
growth to year 2051. The Region has completed the development
charges which lay out the capital plan for all infrastructure for the next
20 years. There is coordination with all Region’s departments on this
project to ensure that other infrastructure projects are taken in
consideration-including wastewater projects.

MNO (Lisa) asked if there are any projection of carbon pollution given that
project of this nature will impact air quality, in terms of distributing land and
generating more traffic. — Lisa was concerned about the general and
microscopic effect of land development and how it will add to the accumulated
carbon with the other projects taking place in the adjacent area. She was also
concerned about the overall contribution to the Climate Change

- Project Team noted that this will be reported in the air quality
assessment in the next phase of the EA process — it will follow MECP
procedures and it will consider the truck traffic volumes.

- Project Team will follow up with the technical team for further
clarification.

- It was clarified that project’s key aspect is to address the safety conflict
created when trucks travel through the downtown areas, versus the
downtowns’ revitalization with active transportation facilities.

- Project Team also noted that with respect to the air quality- even if
there is an increase in truck traffic volumes, the goal is to redirect the
trucks into another alternatives from a road safety perspective.

MNO (Mary) commented about the challenges when only the EA regulatory
requirements are being met, as they are the bare minimum. She asked about
what are the extra things to consider to make the project sustainable. Lisa
commented about options to line the corridor with trees restoration.

- Project Team will follow up with the technical team.

- Project Team referred to the ideas by SNGR, in which bringing in an
opportunity for the native plants nursery as part of the restoration
process to offset vegetation removal.

MNO indicated that staff capacity is an issue, the region will follow up on the
funding capacity. MNO requested that technical reports be provided to
President Derrick Pont, Laura Desaulniers, and Marry MacDougall who will
coordinate internal review.

Page 6 of 7
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MNO (President Derrek) asked about the age and era of the indigenous artifacts
found on Parkridge site. The MNO noted that this small area could be part of a
larger area that may contains other indigenous artifacts. The MNO referred to

an existing stone foundation. .
Region

- The Region’s Indigenous Relations Advisor (Brian) will connect with the
project manger of the Grimsby Water Storage System project to discuss
the invitation and the appropriate connection for the MNO on this
project.

- The project team will provide previous archeological reports that has
been shared with other indigenous community upon request.

MNO (Rhonda) asked if there is an ecological cost to the “Do-nothing”
alternative, to avoid making any changing in the environment. She asked if
there will be an initiative to discover alternatives of lighter colored pavements.
Kathleen referred to examples of studies done on reflective painting in Phoenix
and California that resulted in temperature drop.

CIMA+

- Project Team noted that considering the air quality of the existing
conditions, there is a cost of truck traffic travelling through the dense
downtown areas.

- Project Team noted that one of the commitment of the future EA is to
look for innovation and technology that can be incorporated to mitigate
measures to offset the impacts.

- Project Team will follow up with the technical team.

Minutes Prepared by Alejandra Boyer
Please advise author immediately of any errors or omissions.



From: Elmadhoon, Maged

To: Katherine Jim; Elysia Friedl; Ian Dobrindt

Subject: FW: Niagara Region - Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment - Terms of Reference - HDI
Meeting Notes

Date: Thursday, April 4, 2024 11:40:59 AM

Attachments: image001.ipg

I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Fyi

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

Sent: Tuesday, October 10, 2023 4:20 PM

To: Tassone, Frank <frank.tassone@niagararegion.ca>; Elmadhoon, Maged
<Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>; Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>

Cc: Aaron Detlor <aarondetlor@gmail.com>; Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>; Chazz Pitts
<chazz@detlorlaw.com>; Alejandra Boyer <Alejandra.Boyer@cima.ca>; jake <jake@detlorlaw.com>;
Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca>

Subject: Re: Niagara Region - Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment - Terms of
Reference - HDI Meeting Notes

CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the Niagara Region

email system. Use caution when clicking links or opening attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Good Afternoon Mr. Tassone, Mr. Elmadhoon and Mr. Scott:

We remain open to meeting again after the information that was requested at our meeting can be
provided. Could you also please provide the Indigenous Engagement Protocol referenced at section
7.5.5.1(n) of the Region of Niagara’s Official Plan if one has been prepared.

If one has not been created generally then we are mindful of section 7.11.1.2 which states that:

The Region will create, in collaboration with First Nations, Indigenous communities and Local Area


mailto:Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca
mailto:Katherine.Jim@cima.ca
mailto:Elysia.Friedl@cima.ca
mailto:/o=ExchangeLabs/ou=Exchange Administrative Group (FYDIBOHF23SPDLT)/cn=Recipients/cn=350ec8b65c804d1ba8202e080aa62829-Guest_a5a58
mailto:Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca
http://www.niagararegion.ca/
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Municipalities, an Indigenous Engagement Protocol to be applied at the Regional and Local level
when engaging and coordinating on planning matters.

We are prepared to sit down with the Region of Niagara to begin work on the Engagement Protocol
mindful of section 7.11.1.3 which states that:

The Region and Local Area Municipalities will consider the consultation protocols of the First Nations
that have traditional territory in this area, including the Anishinaabe, specifically the Mississaugas of
the Credit First Nation, and the Haudenosaunee when engaging on planning matters or public works
projects.

We understand that a Terms of Reference on this Project will not be commenced until engagement
has been undertaken which to date has not occurred where, in part, we have received no resources
to make a review of the significant documentation meaningful. As discussed this particular project is
being advanced in the context of the Transportation Master Plan which includes the following:

Executive Summary (October 2017, 14MB
45 pages

Transportation Master Plan Study Report (October 2017, 22 MB)
165 pages

Stakeholder and Public Consultation (June 2017, 54MB)
517 pages

Model Development Executive Summary (August 2016, 1MB)
7 pages

Context and Vision Report (April 2016, 5MB)
78 pages

Needs and Opportunities (October 2016, 3MB)
51 pages

Complete Streets Vision and Direction for a Changing Region (June 2017, 8MB)
75 pages

Complete Streets Design Guidelines (June 2017, 10MB)
92 pages


https://niagararegion.ca/official-plan/pdf/2022-niagara-official-plan.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-executive-summary.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-master-plan-study-report.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-stakeholder-and-public-consultation.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-model-summary.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-directions-report.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-needs-report.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-complete-streets-vision-and-direction.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-complete-streets-design-guidelines.pdf

Strategic Cycling Network (June 2017, 8MB)
33 pages

Wayfinding Signage for Cyclists Guidelines (February 2017, 3MB)
32 pages

Transit Strategy (March 2017, 1MB)
11 pages

Sub-Area Analysis Summary (June 2017, 1MB)
11 pages

Niagara Hamilton Trade Corridor (July 2017, 2MB)
10 pages

Road Strategy Technical Paper (July 2017, 2MB)
15 pages

Operating Policy Review (June 2017, 1MB)
25 pages

Goods Movement (June 2017, 1MB)
14 pages

https://niagararegion.ca/about/inclusive-communities/pdf/draft-indigenous-action-plan.pdf

On Oct 10, 2023, at 2:46 PM, Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca> wrote:

<Niagara Region Escarpment Crossing I[EA ToR - July 18, 2023 HDI Meeting
Minutes.pdf>

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


https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-strategic-cycling-network.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-wayfinding-guidelines.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-transit-strategy.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-sub-area-analysis-summary.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-niagara-hamilton-trade-corridor.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-road-strategy-technical-paper.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-operating-policy-review.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/2041/pdf/tmp-goods-movement.pdf
https://niagararegion.ca/about/inclusive-communities/pdf/draft-indigenous-action-plan.pdf
mailto:Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca

communication to the sender and permanently delete the original and any copy of it from your
computer system. Thank you.



From: Elmadhoon, Maged

To: Katherine Jim; Ian Dobrindt; Elysia Fried|

Subject: FW: Niagara Region - Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment - Terms of Reference - HDI
Meeting Notes

Date: Thursday, April 4, 2024 11:35:15 AM

Attachments: image001.ipg

Niagara Region Escarpment Crossing IEA ToR - July 18, 2023 HDI Meeting Minutes.docx

I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Hi everyone,

For your records and | have attached the meeting minutes with HDI.
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

Sent: Tuesday, October 10, 2023 3:48 PM

To: Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca>

Cc: Aaron Detlor <aarondetlor@gmail.com>; Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>; Chazz Pitts
<chazz@detlorlaw.com>; Tassone, Frank <frank.tassone@niagararegion.ca>; Fraser, Scott
<Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>; Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>;
Alejandra Boyer <Alejandra.Boyer@cima.ca>

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

Good Afternoon Ms. Thompson

| have reviewed and these ‘notes' and they mischaracterize many of the positions that we advanced
and are filed with very self conflicting editorializing. They are not minutes that we would agree
reflect our meeting at all.


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

		Meeting with Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council (HCCC) through their delegate - Haudenosaunee Development Institute (HDI)



		Project:

		Niagara Region Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment - Terms of Reference 



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



		

		Gillian Thompson

		CIMA+



		

		Alejandra (Ali) Boyer

		CIMA+








		Discussion Topics

		Action By



		1. Introductions



		1.1 

		Mr. Doolittle opened the meeting with prayer and thanksgivings to the natural world and all living things.

		



		1.2 

		All parties introduced themselves.

		



		2. Discussion



		2.1 

		Discussion points are summarized as follows:

· Niagara Region confirmed that the Ministry of Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) delegates the procedural aspects of rights-based consultation given that the Crown’s duty to consult is triggered in relation to the proposed project, under the Environmental Assessment Act (EAA)).  A formal delegation letter has yet to be issued MECP, however this letter will be shared with HDI upon receipt. 

· The nature of engagement during previous related studies was discussed.  HDI noted that Section 1.2.2 of the Provincial Policy Statement states, “Planning authorities shall engage with Indigenous communities” and does not believe that this engagement took place in the 2016 Niagara Escarpment Crossing Master Plan and the 2017 Transportation Masterplan. [It is noted that the 2016 Niagara Escarpment Crossing Maser Plan was conducted as planning study and not formalized under the Municipal Class Environmental Assessment Master Plan process, as approved under the EAA. The Transportation Master Plan was undertaken as a Master Plan per the Municipal Class Environmental Assessment].  The Region agreed to look into and confirm to HDI the nature of the Indigenous community engagement that was undertaken for the two studies.  

· HDI stated having a significant interest in the proposed project as it will impair, infringe and interfere with Haudenosaunee rights and interests and treaties (including but not limited to the Nanfan Treaty of 1701, Pledge of the Crown Treaty of April 27, 1815, Preliminary Articles of Peace, Friendship and Alliance of April 3, 1764, Treaty of Peace and Alliance of August 6, 1764 as listed in the HDI email of Jun 27, 2023) 

· HDI stated that the EAA has no provision to address treaty rights.  [post meeting note: although not discussed in detail at the meeting, it is noted here that the EAA includes references to the protection of aboriginal and treaty rights (Section 2.1, Section 16(6), Section 38.2(2) and consultation (Section 40(2)(c)]. 

· The Region Project Team indicated that while the current north-south transportation link / escarpment crossing references earlier work, the Region is completing the current study as an Individual Environmental Assessment (IEA) involving two distinct steps: 1) preparation of a Terms of Reference, for approval by the Minister of Environment, Conservation and Parks, and 2) completion of the Environmental Assessment that follows Terms of Reference.  

· The Region clarified that the project is in the Terms of Reference stage and that they see this stage as an opportunity to incorporate Indigenous community voices, concerns and expectations for the future Environmental Assessment. Feedback will be incorporated in the Terms of Reference work plans and commitments to future work. The Region indicated that they had a slide deck prepared as an information package to explain the elements of the Terms of Reference.  

· HDI indicated that they did not wish to review the slide deck / information package as they will not be participating in the Terms of Reference process. 

· HDI stated that the Region’s request for HDI to participate in the ToR / EA is an abandonment of Indigenous engagement obligations. HDI has not consented to the EA as being sufficient for satisfying engagement requirements. 

· HDI referenced the Two Row Wampum as a way that each nation will respect the ways of the other and walk equally in the discussions. A key aspect of this involves ‘levelling the playing field’ in terms of monetary compensation and resources through an agreement developed and signed outside of the EA process. Compensation would be provided in recognition of economic impacts (i.e., land value). The Region clarified that the project has yet to be defined through the IEA process and therefore the footprint (ha) is not known. The proposed transportation link is conceptualized as an arterial roadway.

· HDI noted that the Region’s Draft Indigenous Action Plan references UNDRIP and suggested that the only way for this project to honour the Region’s commitment is to sign an agreement with HDI.

· HDI referenced the agreement developed and signed with the City of Hamilton for the Red Hill Valley Expressway project which outlined sub agreements including a Joint Stewardship Board, ecological restoration, medicinal plants, maintenance and financial models. [post meeting note: Niagara Region Project Team has obtained and reviewed the City of Hamilton Agreement].

· HDI indicated interest in being involved in field and monitoring programs. The Project Team clarified that field programs and monitoring are not part of the Terms of Reference but will be part of the future EA. It is premature to undertake a field walk at this time but would be organized in future. 

· Niagara Region will take HDI’s request to create a separate but parallel governance/process and financial commitment back to senior leadership for consideration. 

· HDI requested a follow up meeting with the Niagara Region.  The Region committed to meeting with HDI following internal review and discussion. The Region will identify potential meetings dates for consideration / confirmation by HDI.
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		2.2 

		Mr. Doolittle concluded the meeting with a closing reflection and prayer.
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For instance how could the Region possibly have have confirmed that there has been a delegation of
engagement where there has been no delegation. And to correct the note taking of Ms. Boyer the
Crown’s duties are not triggered by or under the EAA. This is just a plainly wrong and incorrect
comment.

We also asked how and when the Region engaged with the HCCC and/or HDI in relation to the 2016
Niagara Escarpment Crossing Master Plan and the 2017 Transportation Masterplan which we
say did not occur. If there was engagement then we asked that it be provided and if there was
no engagement then we asked how and when will the engagement be undertaken.

We never indicated that we have ’significant interests’. We indicated that the proposed
project will impair, interfere and infringe upon established rights. We do not appreciate the
attempt to minimize the impairment of constitutionally protected rights as being a significant
interest.

We did not indicate that the EAA has no provision for addressing treaty rights. We indicated
and confirmed that the EAA has not capacity to accommodate impacts and infringements
upon treaty rights.

They are really just the opinions of Ms. Boyer and do not reflect what we advised the Region.
Regards,

Aaron Detlor

On Oct 10, 2023, at 2:46 PM, Gillian Thompson <Gillian.Thompson@cima.ca> wrote:
Good afternoon,

Please find attached the notes from our July 18, 2023 meeting. Please make us aware
of any edits or comments you may have.

Chazz, could you kindly forward this document to Jake Linklater? Unfortunately, | do
not have his email address.

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
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From: Sawatsky, Carrie <Carrie.Sawatsky@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: Wednesday, July 12, 2023 10:16 AM

To: Sawatsky, Carrie; Tassone, Frank; Fraser, Scott; Wilson, Brian; Elmadhoon, Maged;
Chazz Pitts; Gillian Thompson; Alejandra Boyer

Cc: MacPherson, Judy; Kanda, Seema

Subject: Confirmed - Notice of Study Commencement-Terms of Reference Niagara -
Escarpment Crossing Individual Environmental Assessment

When: July 18, 2023 10:00 AM-11:00 AM (UTC-05:00) Eastern Time (US & Canada).
Where: Canada Games Park - Beatties Room (2021 Canada Games Way, Thorold, ON,
L2V 4Y6)

EXTERNAL EMAIL

Meeting Location: Canada Games Park - Beatties Room (2021 Canada Games Way,
Thorold, ON, L2V 4Y6)

Parking: free onsite for user
<Niagara Region Escarpment Crossing IEA ToR - July 18, 2023 HDI Meeting
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


mailto:Carrie.Sawatsky@niagararegion.ca

From: Elmadhoon, Maged

To: adam.laforme@mncfn.ca; Mark.LaForme@mncfn.ca; Abby.LaForme@mncfn.ca

Cc: Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; Stea, Angela; Katherine Jim; Elysia Friedl; Ian Dobrindt

Subject: Notice of Public Information Centre - Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment
Date: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 12:05:00 PM

Attachments: MCFN Notice of PIC Letter.pdf

Niagara CEA ToR Notice of PIC.pdf

I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Hello,

Please find attached a cover letter and the Notice of Public Information Centre for the
Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment (formerly

known as an Individual Environmental Assessment) - Terms of Reference. For more

information about this project, please visit the project webpage:

https://niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing. We continue to invite
the Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation to participate in this project through this

Public Information Centre or directly with the Region as you see suitable.
Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any question in regard to the project.

Best regards
Maged

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. (he/him)
Manager, Transportation Planning
Transportation Services Division

Public Works, Niagara Region

1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, Thorold, ON
Maged.ElImadhoon@niagararegion.ca
Phone: 905-980-6000 ext. 3583

Cell: 289-407-6862

WWW.niagararegion.ca
Niagara /}Reginn

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

Niagara / / Region 1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box 1042, Thorold, ON L2V 4T7
Tel: 905-980-6000 Toll-Free: 1-800-263-7215 Fax: 905-685-0013
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May 15, 2024

Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation
2789 Mississauga Road R.R. #6
Hagersville, ON NOA 1HO

Sent via email to: Adam LaForme, Archaeological Operations Supervisor

RE: Notice of Public Information Centre
Niagara Escarpment Crossing
Comprehensive Environmental Assessment
Town of Grimsby, Town of Lincoln, Township of West Lincoln

Hello,

In Spring 2023, Niagara Region initiated an Individual Environmental Assessment Study
(now known as “Comprehensive Environmental Assessment”) to provide a north-south
transportation corridor crossing of the Niagara Escarpment between the Queen
Elizabeth Way (QEW) and Regional Road 20 that will provide for the safe and effective
commercial vehicle movements and operations, and other transportation modes, provide
greater safety for local communities, and improve economic vitality with the efficient
movement of goods and services.

The Study will be carried out in accordance with the Environmental Assessment Act as a
Comprehensive Environmental Assessment. A Comprehensive Environmental
Assessment is a two-step approval process with the first step being the preparation of a
Terms of Reference. The Terms of Reference is a document that sets the work plan for
the planning and decision-making process during preparation of the Environmental
Assessment and includes such aspects as the alternatives that will be considered and
the consultation activities that will be carried out.

As a follow up to the June 26, 2023 meeting with the Mississaugas of the Credit First
Nation, we would like to inform you that the draft Terms of Reference has been prepared
and the project team will provide an overview of the work completed to date at an in-
person Public Information Centre (PIC) planned for Wednesday, May 29, 2024 at the
West Niagara Fairgrounds between 5:30 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. There will be a presentation
starting at 6 p.m. followed by a question-and-answer session. Please see the attached
Notice for additional information.
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Should you have any comments or questions or wish to receive more information,
please contact me by email at Maged.EImadhoon@niagararegion.ca or by phone at
905-980-6000 (Ext. 3583).

Please let us know if you would like to be removed from our email list, or if there are
others in your organization who should be added to the list. Niagara Region will continue
to engage the Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation as this Study progresses, and if
interested in discussing the Study further, we can schedule a virtual meeting.

Yours truly,

M. Onathsoon

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng.
Manager, Transportation Planning
Public Works, Niagara Region

1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, Thorold, ON
Phone: 905-980-6000 (Ext. 3583)
Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca

cc: Katherine Jim, M.Eng., P.Eng. Consultant Project Manager, katherine.jim@cima.ca
Mark LaForme, MCFN - Mark.LaForme@mncfn.ca
Abby LaForme, MCFN - Abby.LaForme@mncfn.ca

Enclosed — Notice of Public Information Centre
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Notice of Public Information Centre
MUVING Terms of Reference
R [] H D S Niagara Escarpment Crossing
Comprehensive Environmental Assessment

F[]RWHR'] Town of Grimsby, Town of Lincoln, Township of
West Lincoln
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Preliminary Study Area Map

The preliminary study area for the proposed north-south transportation crossing has
been expanded to accommodate the range of alternatives being considered and the
impacts that may be assessed.

The Study Process

The Study will be carried out in accordance with the Environmental Assessment Act as
a Comprehensive Environmental Assessment. A Comprehensive Environmental
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

A Terms of Reference is submitted to the Ontario Minister of the Environment,
Conservation and Parks (Minister) for approval. If approved by the Minister, then the
Environmental Assessment is to be completed in accordance with the approved Terms
of Reference.

CONNECTING MORE PEOPLE TO MORE POSSIBILITIES Niagara #9/#f Region






You are Invited to Participate

The public, agencies, Indigenous Communities, and other interested persons are
encouraged to actively participate in the Study by reviewing information, providing
comments, asking questions, and/or attending consultation opportunities. An in-person
Public Information Centre is being held to present the draft Terms of Reference. The in-
person Public Information Centre is scheduled as follows:

Date: Wednesday, May 29, 2024

Time: 5:30 p.m. to 8 p.m.

Location: West Niagara Fairgrounds - 7402 Mud St. W. Grassie, Ontario, LOR 1MO
Format: There will be a presentation starting at 6 p.m. followed by a question and
answer session.

On May 30, 2024 the presentation materials and the complete draft Terms
of Reference will be posted to the Region’s website for review at:
niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing. Provide any
comments by July 12, 2024. All comments received will be considered as
part of finalizing the proposed Terms of Reference for submission to the
Minister.

Stay Connected

To be added to the Study contact list, in order to receive future notifications directly, or if
you have any questions or comments on the Study, contact:

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. Katherine Jim, M.Eng., P.Eng.

Manager, Transportation Planning Senior Project Manager

Transportation Services Division Transportation

Public Works, Niagara Region CIMA+

1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, Thorold, ON 400-3027 Harvester Road, Burlington, ON
905-980-6000 ext. 3583 289-288-0287 ext. 6835

escarpmentcrossinglEA@niagararegion.ca

Personal information collected or submitted in writing at public meetings will be
collected, used, and disclosed by members of Regional Council and Regional staff in
accordance with the Municipal Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy Act.
The written submissions including names, contact information and reports of the public
meeting will be made available. Questions should be referred to the Privacy Office at
905-980-6000, ext. 3779 or FOl@niagararegion.ca.

If you require any accommodations for a disability to attend and participate in meetings
or events, please let us know in advance so that arrangements can be made in a timely
manner. Please contact the Accessibility Advisory Coordinator at 905-980-6000 ext.
3252 or accessibility@niagararegion.ca.

This notice was first issued during the week of May 13, 2024.
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
Date: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 12:03:25 PM

Attachments: MNO Notice of PIC Letter.pdf

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
Métis Nation of Ontario to participate in this project through this Public Information

Centre or directly with the Region as you see suitable.
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

WWW.nhiagararegion.ca

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

Suite 1100, 11~ Floor
Ottawa, ON K1P 5H1

Sent via email to: MNO Consultation Inbox — consultations@metisnation.org

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

As a follow up to the August 2, 2023 meeting with Métis Nation of Ontario, we would like
to inform you that the draft Terms of Reference has been prepared and the project team
will provide an overview of the work completed to date at an in-person Public
Information Centre (PIC) planned for Wednesday, May 29, 2024 at the West Niagara
Fairgrounds between 5:30 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. There will be a presentation starting at 6
p.m. followed by a question-and-answer session. Please see the attached Notice for
additional information.
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
to engage Métis Nation of Ontario as this Study progresses, and if interested in
discussing the Study further, we can schedule a virtual meeting.

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

To: info@hdi.land; toddwilliams@hdi.land; Raechelle Williams

Cc: Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; Stea, Angela; Katherine Jim; Elysia Friedl; Ian Dobrindt

Subject: Notice of Public Information Centre - Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment
Date: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 12:04:02 PM

Attachments: HDI Notice of PIC Letter.pdf

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
the Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council, through HDI, to participate in this
project through this Public Information Centre or directly with the Region as you see
suitable.

With respect to your questions regarding the Niagara Official Plan that you shared
with the team during early project engagement, | reached out to the Community
Planning group who leads the development and implementation of the Niagara
Official Plan (NOP). They note that due to the legislative changes impacting the
approval of the NOP, through Bill 150 and potentially through Bill 162, many the
follow-up policies and workplan items have not been initiated or have been put on
hold pending final determination of the approval of the NOP. Staff from the official
plan team will reach out when in a place to initiate the development of Indigenous
Engagement Protocol per the policies of the NOP. If you have any questions about
the Niagara Official Plan you can reach out to Angela Stea via email at

angela.stea@niagararegion.ca or at 905-980-6000 ext 3518.

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

Sent via email to: Janice (Raechelle) Williams, HDI Environmental Supervisor

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

As a follow up to the July 18, 2023, meeting with the Haudenosaunee Development
Institute, we would like to inform you that the draft Terms of Reference has been
prepared and the project team will provide an overview of the work completed to date at
an in-person Public Information Centre (PIC) planned for Wednesday, May 29, 2024,
at the West Niagara Fairgrounds between 5:30 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. There will be a
presentation starting at 6 p.m. followed by a question-and-answer session. Please see
the attached Notice for additional information.





e ———— ———— Public Works Transportation Services

N|agara / / Regmn 1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, PO Box 1042, Thorold, ON L2V 4T7
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
to engage the Haudenosaunee Development Institute as this Study progresses, and if
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
Todd Williams, HDI Monitoring Program Coordinator - toddwilliams@hdi.land
HDI General Mailbox - info@hdi.land

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

The Study
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

To: LRCS@sixnations.ca; Tanya Hill-Montour; Lonny Bomberry

Cc: Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; Stea, Angela; Katherine Jim; Elysia Friedl; Ian Dobrindt

Subject: Notice of Public Information Centre - Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment
Date: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 12:05:41 PM

Attachments: SNGR Notice of PIC Letter.pdf

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
Six Nations of the Grand River to participate in this project through this Public

Information Centre or directly with the Region as you see suitable.
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
1695 Chiefswood Road. P.O. Box 5000
Ohsweken, ON NOA 1MO

Sent via email to: Peter Graham, Consultation Supervisor - LRCS@sixnations.ca

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

As a follow up to the June 20, 2023, meeting with Six Nations of the Grand River, we
would like to inform you that the draft Terms of Reference has been prepared and the
project team will provide an overview of the work completed to date at an in-person
Public Information Centre (PIC) planned for Wednesday, May 29, 2024, at the West
Niagara Fairgrounds between 5:30 p.m. and 8:00 p.m. There will be a presentation
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
to engage Six Nations of the Grand River as this Study progresses, and if interested in
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
Lonny Bomberry, SNGR — lonnybomberry@sixnations.ca
Tanya Hill-Montour, SNGR - tanyahill-montour@sixnations.ca

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

Cc: Eraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; Stea, Angela; Katherine Jim; Elysia Fried|; Ian Dobrindt

Subject: RE: Notice of Public Information Centre - Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment
Date: Thursday, May 30, 2024 1:50:45 PM

I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Hello,

As a follow up to my email below dated May 15, 2024, and the Public Information
Centre (PIC) held yesterday (May 29, 2024), the presentation materials and draft Terms
of Reference (including Technical Work Plans) are now available for download and

comments at: niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing.

As explained in the PIC material, the first stage of the CEA is to develop a Terms of
Reference (TOR/main document) which provides the framework for the project and
identifies technical workplans (appendices) and public consultation to be undertaken
during the future Environmental Assessment (Stage 2).

The main Terms of Reference document provides, but not limited to, the project
purpose, alternatives to the project, description of the preliminary study area, and EA
consultation plan. The technical work plans define the "what" and "how" of the
Environmental Assessment — describing what studies will be undertaken, what the study
area will be, and what factors will be considered.

Please provide comments by July 12, 2024 to the Region Project Manager and
Consultant Project Manager:

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. Katherine Jim, M.Eng., P.Eng.
Manager, Transportation Planning Senior Project Manager
Transportation Services Division Transportation

Public Works, Niagara Region CIMA+

1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, Thorold, ON 400-3027 Harvester Road, Burlington,
905-980-6000 ext. 3583 ON 289-288-0287 ext. 6835

escarpmentcrossinglEA@niagarareqgion.ca

A specific response to your comments will be issued after the July 12, 2024 commenting
period ends. Your comments will be considered as part of finalizing the proposed Terms
of Reference for submission to the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks
later this year.

We continue to invite Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation to participate in this
project. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any question.

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

Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 12:04 PM

To: adam.laforme@mncfn.ca; Mark.LaForme@mncfn.ca; Abby.LaForme@mncfn.ca

Cc: Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>; Khalil, Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Stea,
Angela <Angela.Stea@niagararegion.ca>; Katherine Jim <Katherine Jim@cima.ca>; Elysia Fried|
<Elysia.Friedl@cima.ca>; lan Dobrindt <ian.dobrindt@ghd.com>

Subject: Notice of Public Information Centre - Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive
Environmental Assessment

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

https://niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing. We continue to invite the
Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation to participate in this project through this Public

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
communication including any attachments may be confidential, is intended only for the use of
the recipient(s) named above, and may be legally privileged. If the reader of this message is not
the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination, distribution, disclosure, or
copying of this communication, or any of its contents, is strictly prohibited. If you have received
this communication in error, please re-send this communication to the sender and permanently
delete the original and any copy of it from your computer system. Thank you.
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
Date: Thursday, May 30, 2024 1:50:08 PM

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

We continue to invite Métis Nation of Ontario to participate in this project. Please do not
hesitate to contact me if you have any question.

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

Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 12:03 PM

To: Consultation <consultations@metisnation.org>

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

Subject: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for
Download

Date: Thursday, May 30, 2024 1:50:42 PM

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

We continue to invite the Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council, through HDI, to
participate in this project. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any question.

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

To: info@hdi.land; toddwilliams@hdi.land; Raechelle Williams <raechellewilliams@hdi.land>

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
Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council, through HDI, to participate in this project
through this Public Information Centre or directly with the Region as you see suitable.

With respect to your questions regarding the Niagara Official Plan that you shared with
the team during early project engagement, | reached out to the Community Planning
group who leads the development and implementation of the Niagara Official Plan
(NOP). They note that due to the legislative changes impacting the approval of the
NOP, through Bill 150 and potentially through Bill 162, many the follow-up policies and
workplan items have not been initiated or have been put on hold pending final
determination of the approval of the NOP. Staff from the official plan team will reach out
when in a place to initiate the development of Indigenous Engagement Protocol per the
policies of the NOP. If you have any questions about the Niagara Official Plan you can
reach out to Angela Stea via email at angela.stea@niagararegion.ca or at 905-980-6000
ext 3518.

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
Date: Thursday, May 30, 2024 2:01:25 PM

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

We continue to invite Six Nations of the Grand River to participate in this project. Please
do not hesitate to contact me if you have any question.

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

Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 12:05 PM

To: LRCS@sixnations.ca; Tanya Hill-Montour <tanyahill-montour@sixnations.ca>; Lonny Bomberry
<lonnybomberry@sixnations.ca>

Cc: Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>; Khalil, Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Stea,
Angela <Angela.Stea@niagararegion.ca>; Katherine Jim <Katherine.Jim@cima.ca>; Elysia Fried|
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

https://niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing. We continue to invite Six
Nations of the Grand River to participate in this project through this Public Information

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

To: Peter Graham

Cc: Katherine Jim; Elysia Friedl; Ian Dobrindt; Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat

Subject: RE: Notice of Public Information Centre - Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment
Date: Friday, May 31, 2024 2:00:58 PM

Attachments: image001.ipg

I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Good afternoon Peter,

Thank you for your email. | have copied the consultant team to take note of your initial
feedback below. A specific response to your comments will be issued after the July 12,
2024 commenting period ends. As noted below, your comments will be considered as
part of finalizing the proposed Terms of Reference for submission to the Ministry of the
Environment, Conservation and Parks later this year.

The project team will be more than happy to receive additional feedback on the TOR
documents until July 12, 2024, for consideration as part of finalizing the proposed Terms
of Reference.

Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any question.

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

From: Peter Graham <LRCS@sixnations.ca>

Sent: Friday, May 31, 2024 12:45 PM

To: ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Subject: RE: Notice of Public Information Centre - Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive
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
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Good afternoon Maged,

| don’t have time to look al all the TOC documents, but from a quick scan there’s two aspects I’d
like to comment on. For the natural heritage piece, we would like dedicated searches for deer,
rabbits, and other mammals which can be hunted. For assessment criteria, we’d like effects on
First Nation communities added under social environment and effects on plants and animals
important to First Nations under cultural environment.

Thank you and have a good weekend.

Peter

From: ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 1:51 PM

To: Peter Graham <LRCS@sixnations.ca>; Tanya Hill-Montour <tanyahill-montour@sixnations.ca>;
Lonny Bomberry <lonnybomberry@sixnations.ca>

Cc: Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>; Khalil, Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Stea,
Angela <Angela.Stea@niagararegion.ca>; Katherine Jim <Katherine.Jim@cima.ca>; Elysia Fried|
<Elysia.Friedl@cima.ca>; lan Dobrindt <jan.dobrindt@ghd.com>

Subject: [External] RE: Notice of Public Information Centre - Niagara Escarpment Crossing
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

Cc: Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>; Khalil, Ayat <Avat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Stea,
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
this communication including any attachments may be confidential, is intended only for
the use of the recipient(s) named above, and may be legally privileged. If the reader of this
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

Cc: Eraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; Stea, Angela; Katherine Jim; Elysia Friedl; Ian Dobrindt

Subject: RE: Notice of Public Information Centre - Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment
Date: Friday, July 5, 2024 8:00:15 AM

I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Hello,

Just a reminder and as a follow up to my email below dated May 30, 2024, that the
commenting period for the Niagara Escarpment Crossing CEA Draft Terms of
Reference closes on Friday, July 12, 2024. Documents are uploaded to the project
website at the following link:

https://niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing

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

Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 1:50 PM

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
Angela <Angela.Stea@niagararegion.ca>; Katherine Jim <Katherine.J/im@cima.ca>; Elysia Fried|
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
Date: Friday, July 5, 2024 8:00:44 AM

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

Niagara /jﬂeginn

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

Subject: RE: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for
Download

Date: Friday, July 5, 2024 8:10:57 AM

Attachments: Re Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA Draft Terms of Reference PIC Presentation Available for

Download.msg

I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Hello,

Please be advised that we acknowledge receiving the attached email requesting a
meeting with the project team. We will respond to your request soon. Meanwhile, Just a
kind reminder that the commenting period for the Niagara Escarpment Crossing CEA
Draft Terms of Reference closes on Friday, July 12, 2024. Documents are uploaded to
the project website at the following link:

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

Subject: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC
Presentation Available for Download

Hello,
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Re: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA – Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download

		From

		Rae Lumsdon

		To

		Aaron Detlor; Tracey General; Elmadhoon, Maged

		Cc

		Brian Doolittle; Sharann Martin; Rae Lumsdon

		Recipients

		aarondetlor@gmail.com; traceyghdi@gmail.com; Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca; ganowa@me.com; sharannmartin@hdi.land; rae@lumsdon.ca







CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the Niagara Region email system. Use caution when clicking links or opening attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.








Good afternoon Mr. Elmadhoon, 












I am following up on my email dated June 12, 2024 - for which we have not received a response. 












As mentioned, this project will significantly impair and infringe on treaty rights and interests. As per the below, we remain open to meeting at your earliest convenience to discuss how and when engagement will proceed on the proposed Niagara Escarpment MCEA. 












Please confirm some dates and times that work for you and your team to discuss further. 












I look forward to your reply.






















Rae Lumsdon




VP, Business Development and Client Relationships




416.839.5307




rae@hdito.com
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From: Rae Lumsdon <rae@lumsdon.ca>


Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 1:34 PM


To: Aaron Detlor <aarondetlor@gmail.com>; Tracey General <traceyghdi@gmail.com>;



Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca







Cc: Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>; Sharann Martin <sharannmartin@hdi.land>


Subject: Re: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA – Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download


 




Good afternoon Maged and Katherine, 












We trust this email finds you well and in good spirits. 












We are writing to confirm that we have received the notice of the presentation materials regarding the Niagara Escarpment Crossing. 












In our initial review of the linked webpage and supporting sources, it is clear that the Niagara Region project will impair, infringe and interfere with Haudenosaunee rights and interests.












We would like to know how and when engagement with respect to Haudenosaunee Treaty rights will occur. We require, at a minimum, engagement and consent, in upholding established Haudenosaunee treaty rights, which exist over the entirety of the Niagara Region.












We look forward to sitting down with you and discussing, how and when the obligation to uphold the honor of the crown, as well as the specific engagements required for a comprehensive process. This will obviously include our engagement in developing the terms

 of reference, with which we presently have significant concerns. 












At the same time, we need to consider the following projects, where engagement has not occurred. We would also like to sit down and discuss the Projects set out at the Official Plan (link below) and the Transportation Master Plan (link below) as they are all

 proceeding without engagement despite the fact that the Niagara Region is aware of their obligations to engage. 












https://niagararegion.ca/official-plan/pdf/2022-niagara-official-plan.pdf












https://niagararegion.ca/2041/transportation-master-plan/default.aspx
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How We Go - Niagara Region, Ontario




niagararegion.ca





























Rae Lumsdon




VP, Business Development and Client Relationships




416.839.5307
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From: Aaron Detlor <aarondetlor@gmail.com>


Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 3:10 PM


To: Tracey General <traceyghdi@gmail.com>; Rae Lumsdon <rae@lumsdon.ca>


Cc: Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>; Sharann Martin <sharannmartin@hdi.land>


Subject: Re: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA – Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download

 











On Thu, May 30, 2024, 1:52 p.m. Tracey General <traceyghdi@gmail.com> wrote:


















Begin forwarded message:










From: "Elmadhoon, Maged" <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>




Subject: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA – Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download




Date: May 30, 2024 at 1:50:03 PM EDT




To: "info@hdi.land" <info@hdi.land>, "toddwilliams@hdi.land" <toddwilliams@hdi.land>, Raechelle Williams <raechellewilliams@hdi.land>




Cc: "Fraser, Scott" <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>, "Khalil, Ayat" <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>,

 "Stea, Angela" <Angela.Stea@niagararegion.ca>, Katherine Jim <Katherine.Jim@cima.ca>,

 Elysia Friedl <Elysia.Friedl@cima.ca>, Ian Dobrindt <ian.dobrindt@ghd.com>










Hello,




 




As a follow up to my email below dated May 15, 2024, and the Public Information Centre (PIC) held yesterday (May 29, 2024), the presentation materials and draft Terms of Reference (including Technical Work Plans) are now

 available for download and comments at: niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing. 




 




As explained in the PIC material, the first stage of the CEA is to develop a Terms of Reference (TOR/main document) which provides the framework for the project and identifies technical workplans (appendices) and public consultation

 to be undertaken during the future Environmental Assessment (Stage 2).




 




The main Terms of Reference document provides, but not limited to, the project purpose, alternatives to the project, description of the preliminary study area, and EA consultation plan. The technical work plans define the

 "what" and "how" of the Environmental Assessment – describing what studies will be undertaken, what the study area will be, and what factors will be considered.




 




Please provide comments by July 12, 2024 to the Region Project Manager and Consultant Project Manager:




 








			



Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng.  




Manager, Transportation Planning 




Transportation Services Division 




Public Works, Niagara Region 




1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, Thorold, ON 




905-980-6000 ext. 3583 




escarpmentcrossingIEA@niagararegion.ca




			



Katherine Jim, M.Eng., P.Eng. 




Senior Project Manager 




Transportation 




CIMA+  




400–3027 Harvester Road, Burlington, ON 289-288-0287 ext. 6835   


















 




A specific response to your comments will be issued after the July 12, 2024 commenting period ends. Your comments will be considered as part of finalizing the proposed Terms of Reference for submission to the Ministry of

 the Environment, Conservation and Parks later this year.




 




We continue to invite the Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council, through HDI, to participate in this project. Please do not hesitate to contact me if you have any question.




 




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




Phone:  905-980-6000 ext. 3583




Cell: 289-407-6862




www.niagararegion.ca
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From: Elmadhoon, Maged 


Sent: Wednesday, May 15, 2024 12:04 PM


To: info@hdi.land;

toddwilliams@hdi.land; Raechelle Williams <raechellewilliams@hdi.land>


Cc: Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>;

 Khalil, Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Stea, Angela

 <Angela.Stea@niagararegion.ca>; Katherine Jim <Katherine.Jim@cima.ca>;

 Elysia Friedl <Elysia.Friedl@cima.ca>; Ian Dobrindt <ian.dobrindt@ghd.com>


Subject: Notice of Public Information Centre - Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment







 




Hello,




 




Please find attached a cover letter and the Notice of Public Information Centre for the Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment (formerly known as an Individual Environmental Assessment) - Terms

 of Reference. For more information about this project, please visit the project webpage:https://niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing.

 We continue to invite the Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council, through HDI, to participate in this project through this Public Information Centre or directly with the Region as you see suitable.




 




With respect to your questions regarding the Niagara Official Plan that you shared with the team during early project engagement, I reached out to the Community Planning group

 who leads the development and implementation of the Niagara Official Plan (NOP). They note that due to the legislative changes impacting the approval of the NOP, through Bill 150 and potentially through Bill 162, many the follow-up policies and workplan items

 have not been initiated or have been put on hold pending final determination of the approval of the NOP. Staff from the official plan team will reach out when in a place to initiate the development of Indigenous Engagement Protocol per the policies of the

 NOP.  If you have any questions about the Niagara Official Plan you can reach out to Angela Stea via email at

angela.stea@niagararegion.ca or

 at 905-980-6000 ext 3518.




 




 




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
mailto:escarpmentcrossingIEA@niagararegion.ca
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
Angela <Angela.Stea@niagararegion.ca>; Katherine Jim <Katherine./im@cima.ca>; Elysia Fried|
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
Date: Friday, July 5, 2024 8:00:46 AM

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
Angela <Angela.Stea@niagararegion.ca>; Katherine Jim <Katherine.lim@cima.ca>; Elysia Fried|
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

To: Dawn Russell
Cc: Katherine Jim; Ian Dobrindt; Elysia Friedl; Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat
Subject: RE: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment
Date: Monday, July 22, 2024 11:20:50 AM
Attachments: image002.ipg

image003.png

I EXTERNAL EMAIL

Good morning Dawn,

Thank you for providing your availability to meet regarding the Niagara Escarpment Crossing
Comprehensive Environmental Assessment project.

The project team is available on August 19" and at this time a virtual meeting is preferred to
accommodate all project team members who will be attending the meeting.

| will send you Teams meeting invite. Please feel free to forward it to members of the Six Nations
of the Grand River who will attend the meeting. It will also help if you can provide your comments
ahead of the meeting or any items you would like to discuss for the project team to prepare for
the meeting.

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

From: Dawn Russell <dawnrussell@sixnations.ca>

Sent: Friday, July 19, 2024 1:37 PM

To: Elmadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Subject: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment
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Good afternoon Maged,

On behalf of Six Nations of the Grand River Elected Council (SNGREC) Lands and Resources
Department Consultation and Accommodation Process (CAP) Team we would like to engage in further
discussion and are proposing the following dates:

Tuesday, August 61" at 9am
Monday, August 12" at 9am
Monday, August 19" at 9am

Please advise what works best on your side and your preference for an in-person or virtual meeting. If
the latter please send an invitation to confirm.

Nya:weh (Thank you) much appreciated,

Dawn Russell

Consultation Administrative Assistant

Six Nations of the Grand River Elected Council Lands and Resources Department
dawnrussell@sixnations.ca

519-753-0665 ext. 5422

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

Meeting: Six Nations of the Grand River Draft ToR Comments
Project: Niagara Region Escarpment Crossing CEA ToR

Date and Time: Monday, August 19, 2024 at 9:00am

Discussion Topics

1.

1.1

1.2

2.1

3.1

Introductions

Attendees introduced themselves.

Six Nations of the Grand River provided comments on the draft Terms of Reference (ToR)
and associated Work Plans via email to the Region on May 31, 2024. The comments are
related to the Natural Heritage Work Plan and the proposed assessment criteria.

Proposed Meeting Purpose & Agenda

The purpose of the meeting is to clarify the comments from Six Nations of the Grand
River to ensure that they are appropriately considered as part of preparing the
proposed ToR prior to its submission to the Minister of the Environment, Conservation
and Parks. Comments from Six Nations of the Grand River and meeting minutes will be
documented in the Consultation Record.

Review of Comments & Clarification

First Comment regarding the Natural Heritage Work Plan — Six Nations of the Grand
River would like dedicated searches for deer, rabbits and other mammals which can be
hunted:

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

Peter Graham Six Nations of the Grand River (Consultation Supervisor)
Katherine Jim CIMA+

lan Dobrindt GHD

Action By

Info

Info

Info



Page 2 of 3

Discussion Topics Action By

o Six Nations of the Grand River typically receive a high number of Environmental
Impact Statements (EIS) to review, and the reports often do not provide details
on the search for these types of animals.

e Their Community would like to get a better idea of the degree of impacts to
these specific animals.

e To clarify what is meant by “other mammals”, Six Nations of the Grand River
noted that not every mammal can be included in the surveys, but some species
as stated would be of interest to them.

e Six Nations of the Grand River noted that they work with some Conservation
Areas for deer hunting during some weekends.

e The Nanfan Treaty allows for the ability to hunt on those properties.

e The Project Team noted a Grimsby by-law which states that hunting is not
allowed in the urban area within their municipality, but only south of Ridge Road
on private properties.

e Six Nations of the Grand River will pass along any example mammal studies that

their Wildlife manager is aware of to the Region. Six Nations

3.2 For the assessment criteria, regarding effects on First Nation Communities added Info
under Social Environment:

e Six Nations of the Grand River would like the Project Team to think about the
First Nations perspective —i.e., harvesting — the more development, the less
hunting and harvesting will be available; also think about cumulative effects —
i.e., less opportunity to get out of the land, mental health impacts on the
community, etc.

e Six Nations of the Grand River understands that the EA will review effects to
residents within the Study Area, however this is traditional territory, so effects to
First Nations and their Treaty lands and those that are not living directly in the
area should be considered.

e The Region acknowledged that indirect effects on the Treaty lands, effects on the
traditional way of lives / ability to enjoy the traditional lifestyle would be
included in the EA (i.e., if the transportation crossing alignment can avoid hunting
/ harvesting areas, then there would be less impact on the First Nation
communities).

3.3 For the assessment criteria, effects on plants and animals important to First Nations
under Cultural Environment:

e Six Nations of the Grand River has a specific plant list that can be provided to the
Project Team (Post Meeting Note: Six Nations of the Grand River provided the list
via email on August 19, 2024).

e Six Nations of the Grand River noted “animals” would be the mammals previously Project

mentioned (e.g., deer, rabbits, etc.), but could also include wild turkeys. Six Team

Nations of the Grand River would be interested in participating in the Natural



Discussion Topics

Environment fieldwork during the EA (in addition to Archaeology). Wording to
this effect could be added to the ToR.

e The Project Team noted that the ‘effects on plants and animals’ may be moved to
social environment instead of the cultural environment. Six Nations of the Grand
River are ok with this approach.

4. Other Business & Next Steps

4.1 The Project Team is currently working on finalizing the proposed ToR and issuing
responses to comments received during the draft ToR commenting period.

4.2 The Project Team will prepare minutes from today’s meeting and circulate to all
attendees.

4.3 The Region will be updating their Council in September 2024 with the intent to submit
the proposed ToR in October 2024 to the Minister.

Minutes Prepared by Katherine Jim, CIMA+

Please advise author immediately of any errors or omissions.

Page 3 of 3
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Project
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Info

Project
Team
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From: Elmadhoon, Maged

To: Ian Dobrindt

Cc: Katherine Jim; Elysia Friedl; Fraser, Scott
Subject: FW: Escarpment crossing EA

Date: Monday, August 19, 2024 9:54:35 AM
Attachments: image001.ipg

Draft Plant List- Proponents.pdf

I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Fyi lan.

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

Sent: Monday, August 19, 2024 9:39 AM

To: ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>
Subject: Escarpment crossing EA

CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the Niagara Region

email system. Use caution when clicking links or opening attachments unless you recognize
the sender and know the content is safe.

Hello again Maged,
| didn’t see lan’s email address on the invite, so please send the attached plant list to him.

Thank you, Peter

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
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The Below is a "best approximation" of plant species that may be of interest and importance to the community of Six Nations. This is intended to be a living
document. It should not be considered a complete guide or sole reference when considering traditional plant species. Please consult additional reputable
resources to ensure correct identification of species in the field. For consultation purposes please consult with Kayanase as a resource for replanting

initiatives and for interest in seed collection.

English Scientific Seneca Tuscarora Cayuga Mohawk Kayanase
Interest/
Product
Allegheny Monkey Mimulus ringens Yes
Flower
American Beech Fagus grandifolia Yotyentatiwen
American Black Sambucus canadensis Ordshe Yes
Elderberry
American Ginseng Panax quinquefolius Tekaren’td:ken
American Hazelnut Corylus americana Teiotita:ronte Yes
American Spikenard Aralia racemosa Djohderisegowa
American Sweet Flag | Acorus americanus awéo’da’ Anenno:ron Yes
Arumleaf Sagittaria cuneata
Arrowhead/
Northern Arrowhead
Aster Species Symphyotrichum spp. lotiron’onhkéhare Oron:ia,
lako’tonhkwdhrhos Onénhkwa
Balsam Fir Abies balsamea otsgdda’®
Balsam-poplar Populus balsamifera
Basswood Tilia americana 0:0sd’ ohd:dra Ohésera Yes
Bastard-toadflax Comandra umbellata
Beaked Hazelnut Corylus cornuta Ohso'kwitshera
Bearberry Arctostaphylos uva-ursi Yes
Big Bluestem Andropogon gerardii Yes
Bitter Dock Rumex obtusifolius
Bitternut Hickory Carya cordiformis o:nyd’gwajiwag Yohso'kwatskarat Yes
éh
Black Ash Fraxinus nigra yeddagwa:sos. gohowé:ya’® Ehsa Yes






Black Cherry Prunus serotina e:i’ Tsyotsyoren Yes

Black Eyed Susan Rudbeckia hirta gajihso’do:ta’ Yes
Katsistohkontha

Black Maple Acer nigrum wahda’ (maple) ohwahda® (maple) Widhta (maple)

Black Oak Quercus velutina ogo:wa’. Karihton Yes

Black Raspberry Rubus occidentalis ton'daktho jo’dae:ya:® (jone-die-ah) | Teiothonta:kton, Oniot'sutgus Yes

(raspberry)

Black Spruce Picea mariana O’sé:ra

Black Tupelo Nyssa sylvatica Niiokahkwa:sa

Black Walnut Juglans nigra dzo:nyd’gwa:k Tsyohsokwak Yes

Black Willow Salix nigra oséhda’ (willow) Ose’ko:wa

Bloodroot Sanguinaria canadensis gatgwéhsahai’s Tekanekwénshia’ks

Blue Flag Iris Iris versicolor Yes
Oron:ia Niiotitsi’tso:ten Ond:ta

Blue Vervain Verbana hastata Oron:ia Niiotasho:ten Yes

Blue-Beech Carpinus caroliniana

Bottlebrush Grass Elymus hysterix osdisda:ne’ Yes

Box Elder Acer negundo

Bracken Fern Pteridium aquilinum Aonhakén:ra

Broadleafed Sagittaria latifolia

Arrowhead

Broad-leaved Hydrophyllum

Waterleaf canadense

Bulbous Bittercress Cardamine bulbosa

Bur Oak Quercus macrocarpa Yes

Burning Bush. Euonymus Yes

Eastern Wahoo atropurpureus

Bush Honeysuckle Diervilla lonicera gasha:gé’s. Tekatsi'tsyatsikhetare Yes

Butterfly Milkweed Asclepias tuberosa Yes

Butternut Juglans cinerea Atiehwa:ta or, Tsyohsokwehs Yes

Buttonbush Cephalanthus

occidentalis






Calamus Sweet Flag Acorus calamus awéo’da’ Anenno:ron Yes
Canada Anemone Anemone canadensis Yes
Canada Wild Onion Allium canadense O’nidnkseri
Canadian Milk-vetch | Astragalus canadensis
Canada Serviceberry | Amelanchier Ohra:ton
canadensis
Catnip Nepeta cataria Tako:s Aotihonte Yes
Celery-leaved Ranunculus scleratus Otsi’'nekwaro
Buttercup
Chinquapin Oak Quercus muehlenbergii Karihton
Choke cherry Prunus virginiana deyagonyd’ta:’s Teyakonya'tawenheks Yes
Climbing Bittersweet | Celastrus scandens Karontawakon or
O'nhahtawakon
Clover —Red and Trifolium spp. Tionerahtoken’kd:wa,
White Tionerahtd:ken Katsi’tsara:ken,
Tionerahtd:ken
Common Apple Malus domestica ga:nyo'o:ya’ gahnyo’6h ohya® Sewahié:wane O:kwire Yes
grahé:t OR swahyo:w3d’
ohyd’ grahé:t
Common Blackberry | Rubus allegheniensis Otge:sha' Teiote’nenhra:kton
Common Boneset Eupatorium deyonrahda? ehsdoh teionerataoniston Yes
perfoliatum
Common Cattail Typha latifolia o’éohdo:t. Ond:ta

Common Chicory

Cichorium intybus

Oron:ia Niiotitsi'tso:ten

Common Dandelion

Taraxacum officinale

Kahonro’totha Otsi:tsa

Common Mallow

Malva neglecta

Common Mullein

Verbascum thapsus

Kén:reks Aotashon

Common Nettle

Urtica dioica

Ohrhes (nettle)

Common Plantain

Plantago major

Common Prickly Ash

Zanthoxylum
americanum

A’enna’én:we

Common Purslane

Portulaca oleracea






Common Snowberry | Symphoricarpos albus Yes
Common Sunflower Helianthus annuus
Common Thistle Cirsium vulgare ononi'da ohikda’
Common Violet Viola sororia degegadéhnyoja’s Tekonteniarotahrhoks
(violet)
Common Yarrow Achillea millefolium gané'dota’ Skawerd:wane Aotihonte
Cow Parsnip Heracleum maximum Tsotkarénion
Cup Plant Silphium perfoliatum Yes
Curly Dock Rumex crispus itiente
Dense Blazing Star Liatris spicata Yes
Downy Solomon's Polygonatum
Seal pubescens
Eastern Cottonwood | Populus deltoids Onia’tara’én:we, Yes
Onerahton:tahk (poplar)

Eastern Red Cedar Juniperus virginiana Onen'takwenhten
Eastern Redbud Cercis canadensis Aweriasha
Evening Primrose Oenothera biennis Yes
False Solomon's Seal | Maianthemum Kitkit O’éhta

racemosum
False Sunflower Heliopsis helinthoides Yes
Field Pussytoes Anntennaria neglecta
Fireweed Chamaenerion

angustifolium
Flat-topped White Doellingeria umbellata Yes
Aster
Fleabane Erigeron spp. Ohentaka:ion
Fox Grape Vitis labrusca
Foxglove Penstemon digitalis Yes
Beardtongue
Fragrant False Indigo | Amorpha nana Yes
Fragrant Sumac Rhus aromatica Yes






Fragrant Water Lily

Nymphaea odorata

Waré:ron Aotitsi:ta Néne
Kara:ken

Freeman's Maple Acer x freemanii wahda’ (maple) ohwdhda® (maple) Wahta (maple) Yes
Fringe Sedge Carex crinita Yes
Frost Grape Vitis vulpina Wahyaniydntha
Giant Blue Lobelia Lobelia siphilitica Dya gyeh gah Yes
ta ah
Giant Ragweed Ambrosia trifida
Glaucous Lonicera dioica
Honeysuckle
Goldthread Coptis trifolia Otsi:nekwar Nikahtehro:ten
Grayheaded Ratibida pinnata Yes
Coneflower
Greater Burdock Arctium lappa onghdagd:wah
Green Ash/Red Ash Fraxinus pennsylvanica Kanerohon
Grey Dogwood Cornus racemosa Yes
Ground Pine Lycopodium obscurum Kanen’taweron
Hairy Beardtongue Penstemon hirsutus
Hawthorn species Crataegus spp. ohikdagd:wah (thorn ohiktehs
tree)
Highbush Cranberry Viburnum trilobum Td:kwahre Yes
Hog Peanut Amphiicaroa bracteata
Hop Sedge Carex lupulina Yes
Hop Tree Ptelea trifoliata Yes
Horse Balm Collinsonia canadensis
Huckleberry species Gaylussacia spp., and Ohiahon:ts
Vaccinium spp.
Indian Grass Sorghastrum nutans Yes
Indian Tobacco Lobelia inflata oye’gw’adweh Oien’kwa’on:we
Ironwood Ostrya virginiana Tsyorahsa
Jerusalem Artichoke Helianthus tuberosus O nen no daji:h Oron’énhta






Juneberries/ Amelanchier arborea Ha-donh Ohra:ton
Serviceberries

Lady Fern Athyrium filix-femina letskardhkhwa

Lady Slipper Cypripedium reginae ohdahgwa’ Kwa’kérien Adhta, or

Ahtahkwaka:ion

Lamb's Quarters

Chenopodium album

Teionhnhéhkwen

Lance-leaved Coreopsis lanceolata Yes
Coreopsis
Largetooth Aspen Populus grandidentata Tsyo'skohyowane,
Onerahtdn:tahk (poplar)
Late Figwort/ Scrophularia deyo:y6gého’ Yes
Carpenters Square marilandica
Leaf-cup Polymnia canadensis
Leatherwood Dirca palustris
Otken:seri
Lesser Burdock/ Wild | Arctium minus onghdagd:wah
Rhubarb (burdock)
Little Blue stem Schizachyrium Yes
scoparium
Marsh Marigold Caltha palustris Kanawénhas
Michigan Lily Lilium michiganense Yes
Milkweed spp. Asclepias spp. gand’gwa’is kanon'tinekens (?) Yes
Mint Species Mentha spp. le’tonhkwanostahkhwa
Mountain Maple Acer spicatum ohwahda (maple)
New England Aster Symphyotrichum lotiron’onhkéhare Oron:ia Yes
novae-angliae
New Jersey Tea Ceanothus americanus
Ninebark Physocarpus opulifolius Yes
Northern Bugleweed | Lycopus uniflorus
Northern Catalpa Catalpa speciosa Tekanerahtowa:nens Yes

Northern Pin Oak

Quercus ellipsoidalis

Kanawakodn:ha

Northern Red
Currant

Ribes triste

Ati:ron Adhi Onekwénhtara






Ohio Spiderwort Tradescantia ohiensis Yes
Ostrich Fern Matteuccia
struthiopteris
Pale Purple Echinacea pallida Yes
Coneflower
Pale Touch-me-not Impatiens pallida
Paper Birch Betula papyrifera dega:wisdadh. deyo’waihsdahagh Watenaketarons Yes
(birch) (birch)
Partridge Berry Mitchella repens Ohkwé:sen [:waks
Pasture Rose Rosa carolina Wattokerihsions Otsi:tsa (Rose)
Pearly Everlasting Anaphalis margaritacea
Pennyroyal Mentha pulegium
Pigeon Grape Vitis aestivalis
Prairie Sage/ White Artemisia ludoviciana Yes
Sagebrush
Purple-Flowering Rubus odoratus jo’dae:ya:® (jone-die-ah) | Atahkwaka:ion Yes
Raspberry (raspberry)
Pussy Willow Salix discolor Tahonhtané:ken Aotashon
Red Baneberry Actaea rubra
Red Elm Ulmus rubra absgd’ gah¢:ga: (elm) Ohdksera, or
Ohokseri
Red Maple Acer rubrum wahda’ (maple) ohwahda® (maple) Wahta'kenra Yes
Red Mulberry Morus Rubra Shahieskd:wa Yes
Red Oak Quercus rubra Karihton
Red Osier Dogwood Cornus sericea/ Cornus Roo neh ga Onekwénhtara
stolonifera neht Niwatahtshero:ten
Red Pine Pinus resinosa one’dagd:wah (Pine Ohnehtdien
Tree)
Riverbank grape Vitis riparia O’nénhare Yes

Round-headed Bush-
clover

Lespedeza capitata






Round-leaved
Dogwood

Cornus rugosa

Royal Fern

Osmunda regalis

laonhakén:ra

Running Strawberry
Bush

Euonymous obovatus

Sassafras Sassafras spp. Sassafras
Scarlett Bee Balm Monarda didyma Yes
Sea-Rocket Cakile edentula
Sensitive Fern Onoclea sensibilis Teiohtehri:seron
Canada Serviceberry/ | Amelanchier Ohra:ton
Shadbush canadensis
Shagbark Hickory Carya ovata Onennohkara Yes
Short beaked Sedge Carex breviior Yes
Silky Dogwood Cornus amomum Onekwénhtara Yes
Niwatahtshero:ten
Silver Maple Acer saccharinum wahda’ (maple) ohwahda® (maple) Waéhta (maple) Yes
Silverweed Potentilla anserina/ Orihwakaionhnéha Ken’
Argentina anserina Niiohontésha
Smooth Aster Symphyotrichum laeve Yes
Smooth Juneberry Amelanchier laevis Ha'donh
Smooth Rose Rosa blanda Wattokerihsions Otsi:tsa (Rose) | Yes
Speckled Alder Alnus incana subp. onenhara (red) Yes
Rugosa
Spicebush Lindera benzoin Da-jas
Spotted Touch-Me- impatiens capensis
Not /Jewelweed
Spotted Joe Pye Eupatorium maculatum
Weed and Sweet Joe | and Eutrochium Wenié:nohs
Pye Weed purpureum
Staghorn Sumac Rhus typhina otgd’da’ Tara:kwi Yes
Striped Maple Acer pensylvanicum ohwahda® (maple) Aiénhne
Sugar Maple Acer saccharum wahda’ (maple) ohwahda® (maple) Wahta (maple) Yes






Swamp/Wild/Smooth
Gooseberry

Ribes hirtellum

Ohkwa:ri Aonahi

Swamp Rose Rosa palustris Yes
Swamp Rose Mallow | Hibiscus moscheutos
Swamp White Oak Quercus bicolor Kanawakdn:ha (swamp/pin) Yes
Sweetgrass Hierochloe odorata nawe’dawéht ogahd?’ja® | Ohonte Wenserakon Yes
Switchgrass Panicum virgatum Osha’kén:ta Yes
Sycamore Platanus occidentalis Wa hreh hna
jeh wa deeh

Tall Bellflower Campanula americana
Tall Thimbleweed Anemone virginiana
Tamarack Larix laricina Kanén:ten’s Yes
Thimbleberry Rubus parviflorus Sha:ies
Timothy Grass Phleum pratense Ennékeri Kahtehrara:ken
Tower Mustard Turritis glabra
Trembling Aspen Populus tremuloides Onerahtdn:tahk (poplar), Yes

Tsyo'skohyowane (aspen)
Trillium species Trillium spp. Tsona’tsi:’a Kara:ken

Niiotitsi’tso:ten
Trumpet/Pitcher Sarracenia spp. A’né:wara Aoti:ris
Plant Species
Tulip Tree Liriodendron tulipifera Ska:’ok, Teiotsi:tses (flower)
Turtlehead Chelone glabra Yes
Two-leaved Cardamine diphylla ekdéha:s A:tsa
toothwort

Virginia Creeper

Parthenocissus
quinquefolia

Kontirathens

Virgin's Bower

Clematis virginiana

Wandlike Bush-
Clover

Lespedeza intermedia

Water
Pepper/Smartweed/

Persicaria hydropiper

Tiononhkwa:tsheros






Marsh Pepper

Knotweed
White Ash Fraxinus Americana Kaneron
White Actaea pachypoda
Baneberry/Doll's Eye
White Cedar Thuja occidentalis Onen’takwenhténhtshera Yes
(cedar)
White Meadowsweet | Spiraea alba Yes
Onkwehoén:we Akonerahtakeri
White Oak Quercus alba gagad’da’ or, Otokénha
oga’da’.
segd’da’
White Pine Pinus strobus One’dagd:wah (Tree of | Ohnehta'kowa, or,
Peace) Tsyonerahtasehkowa
White Snakeroot Ageratina altissima Tsonenskwén:rie
White Spruce Picea glauca Kanen'towa or O’séhkwa
White Trout-Lily Erythronium albidum
Wild Bergamot Monarda fistulosa Ken ton kwh nin stha Yes
Wild Black Currant Ribes americanum Djoago wayas Ati:ron A6hi, Ati:ron i:waks
Wild Columbine Aquilegia canadensis Yes
Wild Crabapple Malus coronaria Sewahiowane'on:we
Wild Garlic Alium canadense Kanien'keha
Wild Geranium Geranium maculatum Yes
Wild Ginger Asarum canadense osgwai’'da’. Tionenskwén:rie Yes
Wild Leek Allium tricoccum o'nohsowa:nes Kahrhakdn:ha O’nidnkseri
Wild Petunia Ruellia humilis lotitsha:niht
Wild Plum Prunus americana ge:eh Wishon Yes
Wild Red Raspberry Rubus idaeus dagwad’da:né’ jo’dae:ya:® (jone-die-ah) | Skanekwentarane Yes

(raspberry)

Wild Sarsapirilla

Aralia nudicaulis

Wild Strawberry

Fragaria virginiana

jihsd:dak (gee-sawn-
dock)

ken'niiohontésha






Wild Yam

Dioscorea villosa

Winterberry llex verticillata Yes
Wintergreen Gaultheria procumbens Yes
Witch-hazel Hamamelis viginiana ga’ahdrd:nih Takwa: ashe ronni
Wood Betony Pedicularis canadensis
Wood Nettle Laportea canadensis Ohrhes (nettle)
Wood Poppy Stylophorum diphyllum Tiotsihkonte (poppy Flower)
Woodland Sunflower | Helianthus divaricatus Otsi'tsya'kowa
Yellow Birch Betula allegheniensis dega:wisdadh. deyo’waihsdahagh Tsyotsyoron Yes
(birch) (birch)
Yellow Trout Lilly Erythronium degegadéhnygja’s Skatsihstohkonte
americanum (violet)
Yellow Water Lily Nuphar lutea Waré:ron Aotitsi:ta
Yellow Woodsorrel Oxalis stricta Teiohio:tsist Ohonte
Zigzag Goldenrod Solidago flexicaulis niyawéo’dé:h Yes

(goldenrod sp.)







computer system. Thank you.



Niagara 4Y/f/f Region

Public Works Transportation Services
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September 30, 2024

Six Nations of the Grand River
1695 Chiefswood Road. P.O. Box 5000
Ohsweken, ON NOA 1MO

Sent Via Email To:

Peter Graham, Consultation Supervisor (LRCS@sixnations.ca)

Re: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment —
Township of West Lincoln Comments on the Draft Terms of Reference

Hello,

Thank you for providing Six Nation of the Grand River's (SNGR’s) comments on the
Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment (CEA) draft
Terms of Reference (ToR) (Project) in your May 31, 2023 email, which were clarified at the
August 19, 2024 meeting between yourself and the Project Team. The following table
documents our responses to SNGR’s comments for your information:

Comments Responses

For the natural heritage piece, we would
like dedicated searches for deer, rabbits,
and other mammals which can be hunted.

SNGR would be interested in participating
in the Natural Environment fieldwork during
the EA (in addition to Archaeology).
Wording to this effect could be added to
the ToR.

The list of field investigations in the Natural
Heritage Work Plan (Appendix J of the
draft ToR) has been revised to include
wildlife species important to Indigenous
communities (i.e., deer, rabbits, and other
mammals).

In addition, the Natural Heritage Work Plan
has been revised by adding in the
statement that the Region will extend the
opportunity to interested Indigenous
Communities for their participation in the
field investigations as they are carried out
during preparation of the EA.

For assessment criteria, we’d like effects
on First Nation communities added under
social environment and effects on plants

The evaluation criteria “Effect on First
Nations Communities” and “Effect on
plants and animals important to First
Nation communities” have been added to
the draft ToR.




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

and animals important to First Nations
under cultural environment.

SNGR would like the Project Team to think
about the First Nations perspective —i.e.,
harvesting — the more development, the
less hunting and harvesting will be
available; also think about cumulative
effects — i.e., less opportunity to get out of
the land, mental health impacts on the
community, etc.

In addition, the list of field investigations in
the Natural Heritage Work Plan has been
revised so that plant surveys will
encompass plants important to Indigenous
Communities (identified through the Draft
Plant List of species that may be of interest
and importance to SNGR).

The Region looks forward to continuing to work with SNGR as we carry out this important
Project. Please note that the comments received from SNGR including those responded to
in this letter are documented in the Record of Consultation, which has been prepared in

support of the proposed ToR.

Thank you again for your interest in the Project, and SNGR will be directly notified of the
submission of the proposed ToR to the Minister of the Environment, Conservation and
Parks for a decision. At that time, any interested person including SNGR may inspect the
proposed ToR and provide comments to the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation

and Parks.

Please contact me if you have questions on the preceding information.

Sincerely,

W Onadhoon

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. (he/him)

Manager, Transportation Planning
Transportation Services Division
Public Works, Niagara Region

cc. Scott Fraser, Niagara Region
Katherine Jim, CIMA+
Elysia Friedl, CIMA+
lan Dobrindt, GHD




From: Elmadhoon, M:

To: Aaron Detlor
Cc: Rae Lumsdon; Rae Lumsdon; Katia Galati; Brian Doolittle; Emma Kameka; Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; Tassone, Frank; Dama, Mandi; Katherine Jim; Ian Dobrindt;
Elysia Friedl; Stea, Angela; Gibbs, Donna; Wilson, Brian; Wilson, Michael
Subject: RE: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download
Date: Thursday, September 26, 2024 3:32:22 PM
EXTERNAL EMAIL

Good afternoon Mr. Detlor,

We have had an internal discussion in response to your email below dated September 5, 2024. We acknowledge
your request and continue to invite the Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council, through HDI, to meet with the
project team and identity where the draft Terms of Reference (ToR) may impact the community, identify where the
project interferes with established treaty rights, and suggest modifications to the ToR that would address these
concerns.

Consistent with existing Niagara Region practice with regards to Environmental Assessments, capacity funding is
provided for participating in Stage 2 and later archaeological investigations.

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

Niagara /lRegion

From: Aaron Detlor <aaron@detlorlaw.com>

Sent: Thursday, September 5, 2024 10:14 PM

To: EiImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Cc: Rae Lumsdon <rae@hdito.com>; Rae Lumsdon <rae@lumsdon.ca>; Katia Galati <katia@hdito.com>; Brian Doolittle
<ganowa@me.com>; Emma Kameka <emma@hdito.com>; Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>; Khalil, Ayat
<Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Tassone, Frank <frank.tassone@niagararegion.ca>; Dama, Mandi <Mandi.Dama@niagararegion.ca>;
Katherine Jim <Katherine.Jim@cima.ca>; lan Dobrindt <ian.dobrindt@ghd.com>; Elysia Friedl| <Elysia.Friedl@cima.ca>

Subject: Re: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download

CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the Niagara Region email system. Use caution when

clicking links or opening attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good Evening
Thank you for your email.

Without funding we are unable to participate or move forward with the meeting and as such we will be moving to ensure that
Haudenosaunee rights and interests are protected where it appears that this is not currently a concern for Niagara at this time. It
seems difficult to believe that funding for engagement was not budgeted for such a significant project which will require a significant
number of provincial, municipal and federal approvals.

We would invite you to reconsider your position on funding as it seems somewhat absurd for us to incur the costs of engagement where
we have indicated that your proposed project will significantly impair infringe and interfere with established treaty rights.

“Please advise if you have been delegated any aspect of engagement as we find it hard to believe that the delegation would not also
require the process of engagement to be funded. Please provide any prima facie assessment that you may have received or
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commissioned.

As the same time we are aware that the "MCEA User Guide contemplates the provision of funding to ensure that engagement is fair
equitable and meaningful.

Regards,
Aaron Detlor

Rae please hold the meeting internally so we can receive instructions from Chiefs and Clanmothers on next steps. For instance we
might receive instructions to ensure that no archaeology proceeds on this project

On Sep 5, 2024, at 3:19 PM, Elmadhoon, Maged <maged.elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca> wrote:
Good afternoon Rae,
Thank you for responding and providing your availability.

The project team will be more than happy to meet with your team in person at your offices in Six Nations.
| can send a meeting invite for September 16, 2024 at 1:00 PM. Please provide the location information
and directions, and who will attend, and we can finalize the meeting invite and agenda.

With respect to funding, the Region will not be able to fund the meeting, and this is consistent with all
Regional projects.

We continue to invite the Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council, through HDI to participate in this
project. | look forward to hearing from you soon.

Best regards
Maged

Maged ElImadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. (he/him)
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
<image001.jpg>

From: Rae Lumsdon <rae@hdito.com>

Sent: Wednesday, September 4, 2024 11:06 AM

To: ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.EImadhoon@niagararegion.ca>; Rae Lumsdon <rae@lumsdon.ca>; Katia Galati
<katia@hdito.com>

Cc: Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>; Emma Kameka <emma@hdito.com>; Aaron Detlor <aaron@detlorlaw.com>;
Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>; Khalil, Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Tassone, Frank
<frank.tassone@niagararegion.ca>; Dama, Mandi <Mandi.Dama@niagararegion.ca>; Katherine Jim
<Katherine.Jim@cima.ca>; lan Dobrindt <jan.dobrindt@ghd.com>; Elysia Fried| <Elysia.Friedl@cima.ca>

Subject: Re: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for
Download

CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the Niagara Region email system. Use

caution when clicking links or opening attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good morning Maged,
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Thank you for following up.

We are available on either date. It is our preference that this meeting is held in person. As such, we are happy to
host at our offices in Six Nations. Please confirm that these dates still suit your team.

In addition, please confirm that funding will be provided for our team to attend this meeting. Our rates are listed
below:

$125.00/hr Data-Room Co-ordinator
$175.00/hr Co-ordinator and Administration
$300.00/hr Policy and Technical Analyst
$450.00/hr. Manager and Relationship Steward
$300.00/hr HCCC Secretary

$550/hr Legal

$1,250.00 Per Chief/Clan Mother per Meeting

| look forward to hearing from you.

Rae Lumsdon

VP, Business Development and Client Relationships
416.839.5307

r hdito.com
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From: EImadhoon, Maged <Maged.EImadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: 03 September 2024 13:42

To: Rae Lumsdon <rae@lumsdon.ca>; Katia Galati <katia@hdito.com>; Rae Lumsdon <rae@hdito.com>

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

| was wondering if you have checked HDI availability as per the suggested dates below. Given, the first
option is tomorrow, and we haven’t heard back from you yet, this date will not be available for all the
project team.

Please confirm if the other two dates/times (highlighted in yellow) work for you, and we will finalize the
meeting arrangements.
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

Www.niagararegion.ca
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From: ElImadhoon, Maged

Sent: Wednesday, August 28, 2024 7:11 AM

To: Rae Lumsdon <r: lumsdon.ca>; katia@hdito.com; Rae Lumsdon <r. hdito.com>

Cc: Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>; Emma Kameka <emma@hdito.com>; Aaron Detlor <aaron@detlorlaw.com>; Fraser, Scott
<Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>; Khalil, Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Tassone, Frank <frank.tassone@niagararegion.ca>;
Dama, Mandi <Mandi.Dama@niagararegion.ca>; Katherine Jim <Katherine.Jim@cima.ca>; lan Dobrindt <ian.dobrindt@ghd.com>; Elysia
Friedl <Elysia.Friedl@cima.ca>

Subject: RE: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download

Good morning Rae,

Sorry for the delay. | now have few dates when the project team is available to meet. The below dates
and times are available:

Sept. 4t": 9-10am
Sept. 16t: 1-2 pm or 3-4pm

Sept. 20t": 9-10am

Please let me know when you are available to meet and we will send the meeting invite with all other
details.

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
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From: Rae Lumsdon <rae@lumsdon.ca>

Sent: Tuesday, August 13, 2024 11:59 AM

To: Elmadhoon, Maged <M d.Elmadhoon@ni raregion.ca>; katia@hdito.com; Rae Lumsdon <rae@hdito.com>

Cc: Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>; Emma Kameka <emma@hdito.com>; Aaron Detlor <aaron lorlaw.com>

Subject: Re: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download

CAUTION EXTERNAL EMAIL: This email originated from outside of the Niagara Region email system. Use

caution when clicking links or opening attachments unless you recognize the sender and know the content is safe.

Good morning Mr. Elmadhoon,

| am following up on my previous email below dated July 3, 2024.

Please confirm some dates that work for your organization to meet and discuss your engagement obligations.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Rae Lumsdon
VP, Business Development and Client Relationships
416.839.5307

r hdi m
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From: Rae Lumsdon <rae@lumsdon.ca>
Sent: Wednesday, July 3, 2024 1:28 PM
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To: Aaron Detlor <aarondetlor@gmail.com>; Tracey General
<traceyghdi@gmail.com>; Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>
Cc: Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>; Sharann Martin <sharannmartin@hdi.land>; Rae Lumsdon <r: lumsdon.ca>

Subject: Re: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download

Good afternoon Mr. Elmadhoon,

| am following up on my email dated June 12, 2024 - for which we have not received a response.

As mentioned, this project will significantly impair and infringe on treaty rights and interests. As per the below, we
remain open to meeting at your earliest convenience to discuss how and when engagement will proceed on the
proposed Niagara Escarpment MCEA.

Please confirm some dates and times that work for you and your team to discuss further.

| look forward to your reply.

Rae Lumsdon
VP, Business Development and Client Relationships
416.839.5307

rae@hdito.com
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From: Rae Lumsdon < lumsdon.ca>
Sent: Wednesday, June 12, 2024 1:34 PM

To: Aaron Detlor <aarondetlor@gmail.com>; Tracey General <traceyghdi@gmail.com>; Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca
Cc: Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>; Sharann Martin <sharannmartin@hdi.land>

Subject: Re: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download

Good afternoon Maged and Katherine,

We trust this email finds you well and in good spirits.
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We are writing to confirm that we have received the notice of the presentation materials regarding the Niagara
Escarpment Crossing.

In our initial review of the linked webpage and supporting sources, it is clear that the Niagara Region project will
impair, infringe and interfere with Haudenosaunee rights and interests.

We would like to know how and when engagement with respect to Haudenosaunee Treaty rights will occur. We
require, at a minimum, engagement and consent, in upholding established Haudenosaunee treaty rights, which exist
over the entirety of the Niagara Region.

We look forward to sitting down with you and discussing, how and when the obligation to uphold the honor of the
crown, as well as the specific engagements required for a comprehensive process. This will obviously include our
engagement in developing the terms of reference, with which we presently have significant concerns.

At the same time, we need to consider the following projects, where engagement has not occurred. We would also
like to sit down and discuss the Projects set out at the Official Plan (link below) and the Transportation Master Plan
(link below) as they are all proceeding without engagement despite the fact that the Niagara Region is aware of their
obligations to engage.

https://niagararegion.ca/2041/transportation-master-plan/default.aspx

How We Go - Niagara Region, Ontario

-

. .

Rae Lumsdon
VP, Business Development and Client Relationships
416.839.5307
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From: Aaron Detlor <aarondetlor@gmail.com>
Sent: Thursday, May 30, 2024 3:10 PM
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To: Tracey General <traceyghdi@gmail.com>; Rae Lumsdon <rae@lumsdon.ca>
Cc: Brian Doolittle <ganowa@me.com>; Sharann Martin <sharannmartin@hdi.land>
Subject: Re: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation Available for Download

On Thu, May 30, 2024, 1:52 p.m. Tracey General <{raceyghdi@gmail.com> wrote:

Begin forwarded message:

From: "Elmadhoon, Maged" <Maged.Eimadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Subject: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive EA — Draft Terms of Reference & PIC Presentation
Available for Download

Date: May 30, 2024 at 1:50:03 PM EDT

To: "info@hdi.land" <info@hdi.land>, "toddwilliams@hdi.land" <toddwilliams@hdi.land>, Raechelle Williams
<raechellewilliams@hdi.land>

Cc: "Fraser, Scott" < tt.Fraser@ni raregion.ca>, "Khalil, Ayat" <Ayat.Khalil@ni raregion.ca>, "Stea, Angela"

<Angela.Stea@niagararegion.ca>, Katherine Jim <Katherine.Jim@cima.ca>, Elysia Fried| <Elysia.Friedl@cima.ca>, lan
Dobrindt <ian.dobrindt@ghd.com>
Hello,

As a follow up to my email below dated May 15, 2024, and the Public Information Centre
(PIC) held yesterday (May 29, 2024), the presentation materials and draft Terms of
Reference (including Technical Work Plans) are now available for download and comments

at: niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing.

As explained in the PIC material, the first stage of the CEA is to develop a Terms of
Reference (TOR/main document) which provides the framework for the project and
identifies technical workplans (appendices) and public consultation to be undertaken during
the future Environmental Assessment (Stage 2).

The main Terms of Reference document provides, but not limited to, the project purpose,
alternatives to the project, description of the preliminary study area, and EA consultation
plan. The technical work plans define the "what" and "how" of the Environmental
Assessment — describing what studies will be undertaken, what the study area will be, and
what factors will be considered.

Please provide comments by July 12, 2024 to the Region Project Manager and Consultant
Project Manager:

Maged ElImadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. Katherine Jim, M.Eng., P.Eng.
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
ON 289-288-0287 ext. 6835
905-980-6000 ext. 3583

escarpmentcrossinglEA@niagararegion.ca

A specific response to your comments will be issued after the July 12, 2024 commenting
period ends. Your comments will be considered as part of finalizing the proposed Terms of
Reference for submission to the Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks later
this year.

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
Maged Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca

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

Cc: Fraser, Scott <Scott.Fraser@niagararegion.ca>; Khalil, Ayat <Ayat.Khalil@niagararegion.ca>; Stea, Angela
<Angela.Stea@niagararegion.ca>; Katherine Jim <Katherine.Jim@cima.ca>; Elysia Fried| <Elysia.Friedl@cima.ca>; lan
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
Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment (formerly known
as an Individual Environmental Assessment) - Terms of Reference. For more information
about this project, please visit the project
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webpage:https://niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing. We continue to
invite the Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council, through HDI, to participate in this
project through this Public Information Centre or directly with the Region as you see
suitable.

With respect to your questions regarding the Niagara Official Plan that you shared with the
team during early project engagement, | reached out to the Community Planning group
who leads the development and implementation of the Niagara Official Plan (NOP). They
note that due to the legislative changes impacting the approval of the NOP, through Bill 150
and potentially through Bill 162, many the follow-up policies and workplan items have not
been initiated or have been put on hold pending final determination of the approval of the
NOP. Staff from the official plan team will reach out when in a place to initiate the
development of Indigenous Engagement Protocol per the policies of the NOP. If you have
any questions about the Niagara Official Plan you can reach out to Angela Stea via email
or at 905-980-6000 ext 3518.

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

Niagara //Region

The Regional Municipality of Niagara Confidentiality Notice The information contained in this communication including any
attachments may be confidential, is intended only for the use of the recipient(s) named above, and may be legally
privileged. If the reader of this message is not the intended recipient, you are hereby notified that any dissemination,
distribution, disclosure, or copying of this communication, or any of its contents, is strictly prohibited. If you have received
this communication in error, please re-send this communication to the sender and permanently delete the original and any
copy of it from your computer system. Thank you.
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
Date: Friday, September 27, 2024 3:42:01 PM
EXTERNAL EMAIL

Good afternoon,

The Region is planning on formally submitting the Niagara Escarpment Crossing
Comprehensive Environmental Assessment - Terms of Reference to the Ministry of
the Environment, Conservation and Parks (MECP) in mid to late October. You will be
notified of the formal submission to MECP at that time and the proposed ToR and
associated Work plans will be made available for download on the project webpage:

https://niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-crossing In preparation for the
submission, we would like to confirm if Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council,

through HDI would also like have a hardcopy of the proposed ToR and Work Plans.
Please let me know of your preference by no later than October 11, 2024.

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
Date: Friday, September 27, 2024 3:43:05 PM

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
submission, we would like to confirm if Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation would

also like have a hardcopy of the proposed ToR and Work Plans.
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
Date: Friday, September 27, 2024 3:41:52 PM
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
submission, we would like to confirm if Métis Nation of Ontario would also like have a

hardcopy of the proposed ToR and Work Plans.
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
Date: Friday, September 27, 2024 3:42:03 PM
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
submission, we would like to confirm if Six Nations of the Grand River would also like

have a hardcopy of the proposed ToR and Work Plans.
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
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From: Peter Graham

To: Elmadhoon, Maged; Tanya Hill-Montour; Lonny Bomberry

Cc: Fraser, Scott; Khalil, Ayat; Stea, Angela; Katherine Jim; Elysia Friedl; Ian Dobrindt
Subject: RE: Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment
Date: Tuesday, October 1, 2024 8:18:50 AM

I EXTERNAL EMAIL
Good morning Maged,

Electronic copies are fine.

Thanks, Peter

From: ElImadhoon, Maged <Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca>

Sent: September 27, 2024 3:42 PM

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

Subject: [External] Niagara Escarpment Crossing Comprehensive Environmental Assessment

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
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dissemination, distribution, disclosure, or copying of this communication, or any of its
contents, is strictly prohibited. If you have received this communication in error, please
re-send this communication to the sender and permanently delete the original and any
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
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Notice of Commencement of the
MUVING Terms of Reference
RU ﬂ I]S Niagara Escarpment Crossing Individual
Envi tal A t
F[]RWHRD nvironmenta ssessmen

Town of Grimsby, Town of Lincoln,
Township of West Lincoln

The Study

Niagara Region has initiated a Study to provide a north-south transportation crossing of
the Niagara Escarpment, between the Queen Elizabeth Way (QEW) and potential
Smithville Bypass of Regional Road 20, that is able to accommodate commercial
vehicles and other transportation modes in order to provide greater safety for local
communities, efficient commercial vehicle operations, and potential additional
transportation system capacity, redundancy and resiliency, while ensuring Niagara
remains open for business with the effective movement of goods and people. The
preliminary study area for the proposed north-south transportation crossing includes
portions of the Town of Grimsby, Town of Lincoln, and Township of West Lincoln in
Niagara Region, as shown in the key plan below.
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The Study Process

The Study will be carried out in accordance with the Environmental Assessment Act as
an Individual Environmental Assessment. An Individual Environmental Assessment
represents a two-step approval process with the first step being the preparation of a
Terms of Reference. The Terms of Reference is a document that will set out the
framework or work plan for the planning and decision-making process to be followed
during preparation of the Environmental Assessment and includes such aspects as the
alternatives that will be considered and the consultation activities that will be carried out.

A Terms of Reference is submitted to the Ontario Minister of the Environment,
Conservation and Parks (Minister) for approval. If approved by the Minister, then the
preparation of the Environmental Assessment follows as the second step of the process
and must be done in accordance with the Terms of Reference.

You are Invited to Participate

The public, agencies, Indigenous Communities, and other interested persons are
encouraged to actively participate in the Study process by reviewing information,
providing comments, asking questions, and/or attending consultation opportunities. A
Public Information Centre is planned for later this year to present the draft Terms of
Reference including such requirements as the existing Study Area conditions, proposed
alternatives, and the next steps in the Study. Details regarding the Public Information
Centre will be advertised as the Study progresses. Study information is available for
review on the Region’s website at niagararegion.ca/projects/niagara-escarpment-
crossing

Stay Connected

Please contact either one of the following Study Team members if you wish to be added
to the Study contact list to receive future notifications directly or have any questions or
comments on the Study:

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. Gillian Thompson, B.Sc., MCIP, RPP
Manager, Transportation Planning Senior Planner / Senior Project Manager
Transportation Services Division Transportation Planning

Public Works, Niagara Region CIMA+ Canada Inc.

1815 Sir Isaac Brock Way, Thorold, ON 400-3027 Harvester Road, Burlington, ON
905-980-6000 ext. 3583 289-288-0287 ext. 6852

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
Questions should be referred to the Privacy Office at 905-980-6000, ext. 3779 or
FOl@niagararegion.ca.

If you require any accommodations in order participate in this study, please contact the
Accessibility Advisory Coordinator at 905-980-6000 ext. 3252 or
accessibility@niagararegion.ca.

This notice was first issued on June 27, 2023.

CONNECTING MORE PEOPLE TO MORE POSSIBILITIES Niagara #9/#/ Region







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
staff and the Project Team on June 26, 2023, and we look forward to working with
Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation in developing the Terms of Reference. We
anticipate meeting again in late summer / early fall 2023.

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

Peter Graham, Consultation Supervisor

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
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May 12, 2023

Haudenosaunee Confederacy Chiefs Council
c/o Haudenosaunee Development Institute
P.O. Box 714

Ohsweken, ON NOA 1MO

Sent Via Email
Sge:no/She:koli/Shekon,

The Regional Municipality of Niagara will be formally initiating the development of a Terms
of Reference (ToR) that will guide the future preparation of an Environmental Assessment
(EA) for a north-south transportation crossing of the Niagara Escarpment suitable to
accommodate commercial vehicles and other transportation modes, between the Queen
Elizabeth Way (QEW) and potential Smithville Bypass of Regional Road 20 in the vicinity
of Grimsby, Beamsville and Smithville. A preliminary study area is depicted in the attached
key map.

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

The purpose of this letter is to invite representatives of Haudenosaunee Confederacy
Chiefs Council through your delegate, Haudenosaunee Development Institute (HDI), to
meet with Niagara Region in the early stages of this project, and possibly prior to the
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niagararegion.ca

formal initiation of the Terms of Reference - planned for mid-June 2023. We see this
meeting as an opportunity for introductions and relationship building, sharing information
about this initiative, the Terms of Reference process and the future EA, and understanding
how HDI wishes to participate in the development of the Terms of Reference and in the
future EA.

Niagara Region staff and Project Team members are available to meet as soon as
convenient for your staff in May or early June.

Please contact me by email at Maged.Elmadhoon@niagararegion.ca or by phone at 905-
980-6000 ext. 3583.

| look forward to hearing from you.

Nya:weh,

V. Onahoon

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. (he/him)
Manager, Transportation Planning
Transportation Services Division

Public Works, Niagara Region

Cc: Raechelle Williams, HDI Environmental Supervisor
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

Chief R. Stacey LaForme
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

The purpose of this letter is to invite representatives of Mississaugas of the Credit First
Nation to meet with Niagara Region in the early stages of this project, and possibly prior to
the formal initiation of the Terms of Reference - planned for mid-June 2023. We see this
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meeting as an opportunity for introductions and relationship building, sharing information
about this initiative, the Terms of Reference process and the future EA, and understanding
how Mississaugas of the Credit First Nation wishes to participate in the development of the
Terms of Reference and in the future EA.

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

Cc: Mark LaForme, Director, Department of Consultation and Accommodation
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
(IEA) for a north-south transportation crossing of the Niagara Escarpment suitable to
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

The purpose of this letter is to invite representatives of Metis Nation of Ontario to meet
with Niagara Region in the early stages of this project, and possibly prior to the formal
initiation of the Terms of Reference - planned for mid-June 2023. We see this meeting as
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an opportunity for introductions and relationship building, sharing information about this
initiative, the Terms of Reference process and the future IEA, and understanding how
Metis Nation of Ontario wishes to participate in the development of the Terms of
Reference and in the future EA.

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

W Omacheon

Maged Elmadhoon, M.Eng., P.Eng. (he/him)
Manager, Transportation Planning
Transportation Services Division

Public Works, Niagara Region
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May 12, 2023

Chief Mark Hill

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

The purpose of this letter is to invite representatives of Six Nations of the Grand River to
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
how Six Nations of the Grand River wishes to participate in the development of the Terms
of Reference and in the future EA.

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

Cc: Lonny Bomberry, Lands & Resources Director
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
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